
 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

June 15
th

, 2015 

 

7:00 PM - Regular Meeting 

 

Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex 

Page 1 of 154



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners June 15
th
, 2015 

  Page 1 of 2 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners 

may also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

June 15
th

, 2015 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 

 
 

7:00 P.M. Call to Order - Chairman P. Michael McLain 

 

 

 Welcome 

 

 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance – Tom White 

 
 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 
 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and 

number of comments may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to 

scheduling and other issues. 

 
 

ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

 

 

ITEM 3 Presentations 
 

A. Dr. Mason Economic Improvement Council ............................................. (Pg. 4-6) 

 

B. County Tax Rate Review ........................................................................... (Pg. 7-9) 

 

C. Water & Sewer Staffing ......................................................................... (Pg. 10-16) 
 

 

ITEM 4. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 
 

A. Camden Youth Sports Programming  .................................................... (Pg. 17-22) 
 

 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

 

A. Camden County Capital Improvement Program .................................... (Pg. 23-56) 
 

 

 

Page 2 of 154



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners June 15
th
, 2015 

  Page 2 of 2 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 
 

A. Monthly Tax Report – April .................................................................. (Pg. 57-64) 

 

B. Budget - Ordinance No. 2015-06-02 ..................................................... (Pg. 65-77) 

 

C. Board Salaries - Resolution No. 2015-06-03 ......................................... (Pg. 78-80) 

 

D. Fee Schedule for FY2015-2016 ........................................................... (Pg. 81-102) 

 

E. Set the County tax rate for FY2015-2016 .......................................... (Pg. 104-105) 

 

 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda (All items listed below are routine and will be approved 

by one motion. Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request 

of a member of the Board.) 
 

A. Draft Minutes – 2015-03-16 BOC CIP  .................................................... (Pg. 106) 

B. Budget Amendments – BA024 .......................................................... (Pg. 107-108) 

C. Tax Collection Report   ...................................................................... (Pg. 109-110) 

D. Tax Authorization to Collect (Aug Renewals) .................................. (Pg. 111-112) 

E. Elder Abuse Awareness Proclamation ............................................... (Pg. 113-114) 

F. Personnel Policy Revision ................................................................. (Pg. 115-125) 

G. Ordinance No. 2015-06-01 Supplement 14 Adoption ....................... (Pg. 126-127) 

H. Set Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 – proposed 

amendments to Chapter 151 (UDO) Code of Ordinances ................. (Pg. 128-135) 

I. Surplus - GovDeals ............................................................................ (Pg. 136-140) 

J. Set Public Hearing – Camden Towne Center Sewer & Water Line 

Extension Betterment ................................................................................ (Pg. 141) 
 

 

ITEM 8. Commissioner's Report (For discussion and possible action) 
 

 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report (For discussion and possible action) 
 

 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies   ......................... (Pg. 142-154) 

 

A. Sheriff’s Monthly Report - May ............................................................... (Pg. 142) 

B. Register of Deeds Monthly Report - May .......................................... (Pg. 143-144) 

C. Taylors Beach Landing Road Addition   ........................................... (Pg. 145-148) 

D. Albemarle Commission - Letter of Support for EDA Grant ..................... (Pg. 149) 

E. Sales Tax Distribution  ...................................................................... (Pg. 150-152) 

F. Senate Unveils Revised HB 117 Including Updated Sales Tax 

Distribution Plan, Questions Remain ................................................. (Pg. 153-154) 

 

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 

Page 3 of 154



 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.A 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (2 Pages) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Economic Improvement Council 
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Dr. Landon Mason from the Economic Improvement Council will 

update the Commissioners about the opportunities provided by the 

EIC to the residents of Camden. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information only 

MOTION MADE 

BY: 

S. Duckwall ____ 

G. Meiggs ____ 

M. McLain ____ 

R. Krainiak ____ 

C. Riggs ____ 

NO MOTION ____ 

 

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall ____ 

G. Meiggs ____ 

M. McLain ____ 

R. Krainiak ____ 

C. Riggs ____ 

ABSENT ____ 

RECUSED ____ 

 

Page 4 of 154



Page 5 of 154



Page 6 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.B 

 

Presentations 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (3 Pages) 

Submitted By: Finance Officer 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   2015 Tax Rate Review   
     

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
This being a revaluation year in which we saw decreasing property values, I thought 

it would be helpful to layout the true effects of the decrease in property value and 

the resulting property tax equalization. In trying to equalize the tax values to be in 

line with market values, an adjustment to the tax rate is needed to neutralize the 

revenue we would have lost from keeping the previous rate. Typically, the values are 

not adjusted as significantly as they are this revaluation period. While our tax rate 

is being adjusted .09/100, other partnering counties saw rate increases in the double 

digits when adjusting for revaluations performed after the housing bubble. The last 

valuation caused a significant increase in values due to the housing boom and the 

result was a significant decrease in the tax rate. While the tax rates needs to be 

adjusted for the decrease in property values we are still not at the pre-housing boom 

rate of $.90/100. Even with the decrease in our tax base, we have been able to budget 

a tax rate below the revenue neutral rate of 1.2 cents. A savings to taxpayers of 

$218,358 ($121,102/97,256). Many factors contribute to this but the major factor is 

the minimal increase in our annual operating budget from 14-15 to 15-16. 

 

Our fund balance continues to be healthy from conscientious spending and wise 

investment of county resources which is allowing for this savings that is being 

passed on to our citizens. We are also in a position to begin using our county 

resources to invest in infrastructure to provide improved service and economic 

development. Our citizens have expressed excitement and approval of the recent 

development such as the new Dollar General Store.  

 

While self-sufficiency of the South Camden Water and Sewer needed to be 

addressed with rate increases, it is important to recognize the fiscal responsibility 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 7 of 154



this represents.  The Local Government Commission as well as the Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board set standards that require using tax revenue to 

improve county services and Enterprise revenue to improve water/sewer services. 

Even though additional revenue may be needed in coming years, this year’s partial 

adjustment will bring additional revenue toward that standard while minimizing 

the effect to customers.  

 

To illustrate the importance of adjusting our tax rate, the attached document shows 

the effect to our county services if we do not adjust our tax rates to a more revenue 

neutral rate. Based on the financial information available for your review we are 

able to show how Camden County Commissioners and Employees continue to make 

wise financial decisions and important investments for the county and our citizens.  

Page 8 of 154



2015-2016

Tax Revenue 2014 2015 Loss with Rev Neutral Savings to 

Per .01 0.59 0.68 No Tax Adjustment 0.6926 Citizens w/.68

$961,124,336 96,112.43$ 5,670,634 6,535,645 $865,012 6,656,747  $121,102 (Prop Tax)

97,256 (Fire Tax)

Budgeted by statutory authority 96% 6,274,220 $218,358

Budgeted shortfall 95,178 *

(General Fund Balance Appropriated)

Budget Percentages

Effect of no tax rate adjustment

0.68 0.59

Governing Body 0.80% -$6,920 *

County Administration 1.80% -$15,570 *

Elections 1.10% -$9,515 *

Finance 1.70% -$14,705 *

Personnel 0.60% -$5,190 *

Tax Department 3.40% -$29,410 Lose a staff member and reduce ability to collect past due taxes

Legals 0.40% -$3,460 *

Register of Deeds 1.70% -$14,705 Create backlog of Deeds

Planning Department 4.00% -$34,600 Cancel update to UDO

Public Works 4.50% -$38,926 Cancel Historic Jail repair and Parking lot repavement

Non-Departmental 1.70% -$14,705 Lose County Website & Video recordings of Commissioner meetings

Sheriff & SRO 14.20% -$122,832 Loss of two Sheriff Deputies and the School Resource Officer

Solid Waste 5.40% -$46,711 Close convenience sites to one site couty-wide or open only 5 days per week

Cooperative Extension 0.80% -$6,920 Lose ability to hire County Ag Agent

Parks & Recreation 2.20% -$19,030 End Basketball and/or Volleyball program

Senior Center 1.00% -$8,650 Reduce staff from 2 to 1, ending senior activities & congregate meal program

Economic Development 1.30% -$11,245 * (adtl loss of $8650 from public health causing loss of meal program)

Capital Outlay/Debt Service 8.80% -$76,121 Default on loans

Special Appropriations 39.40% -$340,815 Reduce School Funding resulting in loss of teaching positions

*result in loss of county employee Total Positions Lost: 6 plus multiple teaching positions

Revenue 

Neutral Rate 

2014 Tax 

Rate

Current Value 

per Tax Rpt

*Allows for a .01 reducation of the revenue neutral tax rate saving citizens $218,358

Page 9 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.C 

 

Presentations 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (5 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Water/Sewer Staffing 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The County Manager will present the attached PowerPoint and discuss the 

need for the requested new Water & Sewer Collection/Distribution staff 

position in the FY 2015-2016 annual budget. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

For information only. 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 10 of 154



Water & Sewer Staffing  

June 15, 2015 

Page 11 of 154



Historical Staffing: Water/Sewer 

Late 1990’s Installation of Water 
Lines (Water 
Purchased from EC) 

2 Field Personnel 
Hired 

2002 WTP Opens (County 
water supply) 

2 WTP personnel 
Hired 

2003 Water Consumption 
Increases 

1 New WTP Personnel 
Hired 

2006 Sewer need identified 
(began WWTP 
planning) 

1 WWTP Supervisor 
Hired 

2008 WWTP Completed 2 WWTP personnel 
Hired (1 Field staff 
identified-not hired) 

2015 Water/Sewer 
Collection & 
Distribution 
Requested 

1 new personnel 
included in proposed 
budget 

Page 12 of 154



Water/Sewer Work Order Demand 

 
Year 

 
Work Orders Processed 

 
Locates  

(mark water/sewer lines) 

2008 953 1129 

2009 1003 910 

2010 880 1053 

2011 975 1107 

2012 1393 988 

2013 1245 1038 

2014 1181 1032 

Page 13 of 154



Water/Sewer System Additions 

97 new sewer connections added in South Mills Village 
in 2014 (150 total sewer customers) 

 
482 new water customers added since 2003 (WTP 

online)…2,058 total water customers 
 
Addition of new retail/commercial water and sewer 

customers 
 
Need for more frequent fire hydrant inspections (257 

hydrants in District) 
 
Planning underway for construction of new well site 

(meet increasing water demand) 
 

 

Page 14 of 154



Track 1 Sewer Lift Station 

Hyman Robey Sewer Lift Station 

17 Sewer Lift Stations in County 

Page 15 of 154



Water/Sewer System Overview 

206 miles of water line (2015, Camden GIS) 
 
21.5 miles of sewer main (2015, Camden GIS) 
 
17 sewer lift stations (Courthouse and South Mills) 
 
257 fire hydrants 

 All currently serviced/maintained 
by 2 field personnel 

 
 Repairs sometimes delayed due to 

staff illness and scheduled vacation 

Page 16 of 154



 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.A 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 
 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   4 (4 pages) 

Submitted By: Timothy White, Recreation Director 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   Camden Youth Sports Programming  
 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
A report concerning the possible creation of a Camden Youth Soccer league run by 

the Camden Youth League to be played at the Camden Community Park during the 

Fall of the year. 

 

Background 

 

On May 29, 2015 the County Manager received email notification from the 

principal organizers of the Camden Youth Football & Cheerleading (see attached) 

indicating that the organizers no longer desired to run the program and requesting 

that the County assume operations of the program.  The Parks & Recreation 

Director advised the County Manager that the Parks & Recreation Department 

lacked sufficient funding and other resources to operate this football program. 

 

For several years, the County has had two youth football programs operated by the 

non-profits Camden Youth Football & Cheerleading and Shiloh Sharks.  The 

Camden Youth Football & Cheerleading had principal use of playing/practice fields 

through the Facility Use Agreement between the County and Camden County 

Public Schools.  Shiloh Sharks Football had been using privately controlled fields 

during this period. 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall    

G. Meiggs       

M. McLain       

C. Riggs          

T. White  

NO MOTION  

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall  

G. Meiggs  

M. McLain  

C. Riggs     

T. White 

Page 17 of 154



 

 

 

Following receipt of the Camden Youth Football & Cheerleading letter indicating 

they no longer desired to operate their program, the Parks & Recreation Advisory 

Board met in regular meeting on June 4, 2015.  Also at this meeting was a 

representative from the Camden Youth League (formerly Babe Ruth) to provide 

information concerning this group’s desire to operate a youth soccer league in 

Camden during the Fall.  Having a proper quorum and following a discussion, the 

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board voted to recommend to the Board of 

Commissioners that consideration be given to allow the Camden Youth league to 

run a youth soccer program in the Fall using existing filed space (see attached 

diagram).  This would create additional organized youth sport options in the 

County. 

 

On June 5, 2015 the County Manager notified the organizers of Camden Youth 

Football & Cheerleading that the County was not interested in assuming the 

operation of their program at this time (see attached letter).  On June 8, 2015 the 

County Manager received email notification from the organizers of Camden Youth 

Football & Cheerleading (see attached) that the group was now planning to look at 

“other options” in light of the County’s decision.  

 

  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board has recommended allowing the Camden 

Youth League to operate a Fall youth soccer program using existing field space 

made available through the Facility Use Agreement between the County and 

Camden County Public Schools.  

 

Page 18 of 154



200 Ft. Fence

Football Fields

Soccer Fields

100 x 50 Yds

7-9 Year Olds    70 x 40 Yds

10-12 Year Olds    70 x 50 Yds

4-6 Year Olds   30 x 20 Yds

Baseball Fields

Page 19 of 154



Page 20 of 154



Page 21 of 154



Page 22 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   4.A 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (33 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Public Hearing – Capital Improvement 

    Five Year Plan – 2016-2020 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Capital Improvement Plan was updated, adding new projects and removing 

completed projects at the work session on March 16, 2015 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Open to public for comments 

 

After close of Hearing and if no comments at Public Hearing, entertain a motion to 

amend the agenda by adding New Business item  - 6.F  Capital Improvement Plan-

2016-2020 for consideration by the Board. 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 23 of 154



Page 24 of 154



Page 25 of 154



Page 26 of 154



Page 27 of 154



Page 28 of 154



Page 29 of 154



Page 30 of 154



Page 31 of 154



Page 32 of 154



Page 33 of 154



Page 34 of 154



Page 35 of 154



Page 36 of 154



Page 37 of 154



Page 38 of 154



Page 39 of 154



Page 40 of 154



Page 41 of 154



Page 42 of 154



Page 43 of 154



Page 44 of 154



Page 45 of 154



Page 46 of 154



Page 47 of 154



Page 48 of 154



Page 49 of 154



Page 50 of 154



Page 51 of 154



Page 52 of 154



Page 53 of 154



Page 54 of 154



Page 55 of 154



Page 56 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.A 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   2 (7 Page) 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Monthly Tax Report 

 April 2015 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

  

Monthly Tax Report for April 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review & Approve 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 57 of 154



MONTHLY REPORT OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR TO THE
        CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

               OUTSTANDING TAX DELINQUENCIES BY YEAR

YEAR REAL PROPERTY PERSONAL PROPERTY

2014 283,912.14 10,429.57

2013 95,955.05 8,744.82

2012 36,494.29 11,019.74

2011 20,848.32 8,157.63

2010 20,670.05 6,405.84

2009 7,371.42 6,069.27

2008 6,133.35 6,354.62

 

2007 6,133.10 9,814.64

2006 2,119.03 14,493.82

2005 1,690.71 26,514.92

  

  

  

Page 58 of 154



TOTAL REAL PROPERTY TAX UNCOLLECTED        481,327.46

TOTAL PERSONAL PROPERTY UNCOLLECTED        108,004.87

TEN YEAR PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE                                                           99.13%

COLLECTION FOR 2015 vs. 2014 71,608.48 vs. 59,473.57

LAST 3 YEARS PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE

2014 95.66%

2013 98.51%

2012 99.34%

THIRTY LARGEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "A"

THIRTY OLDEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "B"

Page 59 of 154



 

EFFORTS AT COLLECTION IN THE LAST 30 DAYS

       ENDING April 2015
               BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR

 

86 NUMBER DELINQUENCY NOTICES SENT

83 FOLLOWUP REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT SENT

7 NUMBER OF WAGE GARNISHMENTS ISSUED

 

8 NUMBER OF BANK GARNISHMENTS ISSUED

12 NUMBER OF PERSONAL PHONE CALLS MADE BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR

TO DELINQUENT TAXPAYER

0 NUMBER OF PERSONAL VISITS CONDUCTED (COUNTY OFFICES)

21 PAYMENT AGREEMENTS PREPARED UNDER AUTHORITY OF

TAX ADMINISTRATOR

0 NUMBER OF PAYMENT AGREEMENTS RECOMMENDED TO

COUNTY ATTORNEY 

0 NUMBER OF CASES TURNED OVER TO COUNTY ATTORNEY FOR 

COLLECTION (I.D. AND STATUS)

0 REQUEST FOR EXECUTION FILES WITH CLERK OF COURTS 

0 NUMBER OF JUDGMENTS FILED 

3

Page 60 of 154



Page 61 of 154



Page 62 of 154



Page 63 of 154



Page 64 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.C 

 

 NEW BUSINESS 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (12 Pages) 

Submitted By: Administration  

  
 

ITEM TITLE:   Budget Ordinance No. 2015-06-02   
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
Budget for FY2015-2016 for Camden County.  

 
The Public Hearing was held on June 8

th
, 2015 

   

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2015-06-02 - FY2015-2016 Budget 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 65 of 154



Ordinance No. 2015-06-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF  

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF  

CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA,  

RELATING TO THE FY 2015 – 2016 BUDGET 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CAMDEN 

COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA: 

 

ARTICLE I.  BUDGET ORDINANCE 

 

 This Ordinance hereby incorporates, in its entirety, this Budget for the County of 

Camden for FY 2015-2016, adopted by the Board of Commissioners on June 15, 2015. 

Said Ordinance may hereafter be referred to as the “Budget Ordinance”. 

 

ARTICLE II.  GENERAL FUND 

 

 SECTION 1 – Appropriations: The following amounts are hereby 

appropriated in the General Fund for the operation of county government and its 

activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016 in 

accordance with the Budget Ordinance and the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for this county. 

 

 Governing Body ................................................................................ $ 95,614 

 County Administration....................................................................... 214,667 

 Elections ............................................................................................. 133,494           

 Finance...................................................................... ......................... 201,862 

            Personnel .............................................................................................. 71,883  

 Tax Supervisor ................................................................................... 404,850 

            Register of Deeds ............................................................................... 202,714 

 Community Development/Planning................................................... 355,678 

 Inspections ......................................................................................... 125,300 

 Economic Development Commission................................................ 159,953

 Building & Grounds ........................................................................... 418,849 

 Sheriff ............................................................................................. 1,615,183 

 School Resource Officer (SRO)........................................................... 65,405 

 Court Facilities ..................................................................................... 29,934 

 Jury Commission ...................................................................................... 118 

 Public Works Administration ............................................................ 114,107 

 Fleet Vehicles....................................................................................... 10,000 

 Traffic .................................................................................................... 3,560 

 Solid Waste ........................................................................................ 646,413 

 Public Health ...................................................................................... 128,331 

 Extension............................................................................................ 101,540 

 Legals ................................................................................................... 50,000 

 Parks & Recreation ............................................................................ 261,180 

 DDJP (JCPC) ....................................................................................... 67,631 

 Senior Center ..................................................................................... 121,017 

 Non-Departmental.............................................................................. 198,643 

 Museum.................................................................................................. 5,900 

  

Page 66 of 154



 Soil/Water Conservation ...................................................................... 62,263 

 Capital Outlay/Debt Service ........................................................... 1,050,321 

 Youth Council ........................................................................................ 1,300 

 County Public Library........................................................................ 198,861 

Special Appropriations: 

Albemarle Commission ............................................................. 6,613 

Alb. Dist. Jail Operations ....................................................... 405,920 

College of the Albemarle ......................................................... 40,000 

Conservation/Forestry .............................................................. 55,422 

Central Communications ....................................................... 251,213 

Emergency Management ......................................................... 13,798 

RC&D ........................................................................................... 750 

Schools – Current Expense ................................................. 2,072,942     

Schools – Contribution to Capital Reserve ............................ 323,783 

MLK Funding ............................................................................... 300 

Hopeline ..................................................................................... 2,000 

Food Pantry/Bank ...................................................................... 2,000 

Social Services ....................................................................... 325,000 

EMS ....................................................................................... 485,000 

CH&S Fire Commission Four Cents ..................................... 243,453 

CH&S Fire Truck Loan ......................................................... 219,500 

South Mills Fire Commission Four Cents ............................. 145,570 

4-H Insurance ........................................................................... 53,004 

 Contingency ......................................................................................... 40,000 

 

 TOTAL GENERAL FUND            $         11,802,839 

 

 

 SECTION 2 – Revenues:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be 

available in the General Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

 

 Ad Valorem and Vehicle Taxes: 

Budget Year ...................................................................... $6,764,220 

Prior Years Summary ............................................................. 318,850 

Penalties and Interest ............................................................... 50,000 

House Bill 1779 ............................................................................ 500 

 Other Taxes and Licenses: 

State 1 cent Sales Tax ............................................................ 565,000 

Local Sales Tax - Art. 40  ....................................................... 425,000 

                        Local Sales Tax - Art. 42  ....................................................... 125,000 

           Unrestricted Intergovernmental:                             

ABC Profits .............................................................................. 35,000 

Refuge Revenue Sharing............................................................ 8,500 

Beer and Wine Tax .................................................................. 41,500 

Utilities Franchise Fees .......................................................... 625,000 

Medicaid Hold Harmless ....................................................... 650,000 

 Restricted Intergovernmental: 

State Grants – JJDP .................................................................. 51,907 

Soil/Water Funds ....................................................................... 3,600 

S/W Technician Grant.............................................................. 21,794 

Capital Reserve & Transfer Tax for Capital Debt Service .... 376,283 

Page 67 of 154



Court Facilities Fees ................................................................ 20,000 

Alb. Comm. Nutrition Site ......................................................... 6,840 

School Resource Officer .......................................................... 37,838 

School Capital Reserve Fund for School Debt Service ...... 1,005,321 

Senior Center Grant ................................................................... 3,900 

  Fees and Permits: 

Register of Deeds Fees........................................................... 101,500                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Building Permits and Planning Fees ........................................ 70,400 

Land Use Fees ............................................................................ 5,000 

Leased Property ....................................................................... 22,000 

Tire Disposal Dist .................................................................... 16,000 

White Goods Disposal Dist ........................................................ 5,000 

Recyclables .............................................................................. 12,000 

Disposables Tax Distribution ..................................................... 5,000 

Electronics Management ............................................................... 800 

Cable Franchise Fee ................................................................. 75,000 

Gun Permit Fees ....................................................................... 15,000 

Golf Cart Fees ............................................................................... 240 

Pet/Privilege Licenses ................................................................... 250 

5 Cents Per Bottle Fees .............................................................. 3,600 

Recreation Fees ........................................................................ 19,500 

Library Fees ............................................................................... 2,600 

 Sales and Services: 

Jail Fees........................................................... ........................... 3,000 

Sheriff’s Officer Fees ............................................................... 22,000 

Sale of Fixed Assets ................................................................... 3,000 

Fines & Forfeitures .................................................................. 80,000 

911 Fees for GIS ...................................................................... 30,000 

 Other: 

Sheriff’s Department Grants & Donations .............................. 16,100 

Wellness Grant ........................................................................... 2,350 

 Interest...................................................................................... 46,968 

 Miscellaneous .......................................................................... 14,300 

                        Appropriated Fund Balance ..................................................... 95,178 

 

 TOTAL GENERAL FUND                     $         11,802,839 

 

 

ARTICLE III. SOUTH CAMDEN WATER/SEWER DISTRICT FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the South Camden 

Water/Sewer District Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 

2016. 

                        R/O Plant Operation Expenses............................................... 415,395 

 Waste Water Operation Expenses .......................................... 407,901 

 Distribution Expenses ............................................................ 372,132 

 Debt Service ........................................................................... 286,980 

    $1,482,408 

  

 

Page 68 of 154



It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the South 

Camden Water/Sewer District Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending 

June 30, 2016. 

 Sale of Water.......................................................................... 987,750 

 Sewer Fees ............................................................................. 106,597 

 Connection Fees ....................................................................... 30,000 

 Miscellaneous .......................................................................... 40,300 

 Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 142,761 

 General Fund Contribution .................................................... 175,000 

       $1,482,408 

 

ARTICLE IV. COURTHOUSE & SHILOH FIRE COMMISSION FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Courthouse and 

Shiloh Fire Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

 General Expenses ................................................................... 200,275 

 Fire Truck............................................................................... 469,500 

 Department of Insurance Grant ................................................ 60,000 

 Debt Service ............................................................................. 56,003 

 $785,778 

 

  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the 

Courthouse and Shiloh Fire Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 

and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

 Fire Tax .................................................................................... 60,863 

 4 Cent County Match ............................................................. 243,453 

 Leased Property ......................................................................... 9,000 

 Grant ........................................................................................ 30,000 

 Interest Earnings ........................................................................ 3,000 

 Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 219,962 

 Co. Loan – Fire Truck ............................................................ 219,500 

 $785,778 

 

ARTICLE V.  SOUTH MILLS FIRE COMMISSION FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the South Mills Fire 

Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

 General Expenses ..................................................................... 92,475 

 Debt Service ........................................................................... 104,047 

 $196,522 

 

  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the South 

Mills Fire Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

Fire Tax .................................................................................... 36,393 

4 Cent County Match ............................................................. 145,570 

Interest........................................................................................ 2,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ..................................................... 12,559  

            $196,522 

Page 69 of 154



ARTICLE VI. SOCIAL SERVICES 

 

            The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Social Services 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Administrative Expenses ....................................................... 996,472 

Public Assistance ................................................................... 334,159 

 $1,330,631 

 

  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Social 

Services Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

   

County Appropriations........................................................... 325,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ..................................................... 22,036 

State/Federal Funds ...............................................................  983,595 

  $1,330,631 

   

DSS Trust Fund Revenues .................... $33,400 

DSS Trust Fund Expenses .................... $33,400 

 

 

ARTICLE VII. JOYCE CREEK DRAINAGE PROJECT FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Joyce Creek 

Drainage Project Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 

2016. 

General Upkeep on project ...................................................... 45,200 

Fund Reserve ...........................................................................   5,512                                                              

 $50,712 

   

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Joyce 

Creek Drainage Project Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

Watershed Improvement Fee ................................................... 49,724 

Miscellaneous ..........................................................................      988 

 $50,712 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  FEREBEE COURTHOUSE TRUST FUND 

 

  For purposes of summary only, the following amounts are hereby 

appropriated in the Nancy M. & H. C. Ferebee, III Courthouse Trust for the restoration of 

the 1847 Camden County Courthouse for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and 

ending June 30, 2016. 

   

Fund Reserves .......................................................................... $1,530 

 

Trust Revenues......................................................................... $1,530 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70 of 154



ARTICLE IX. REVALUATION RESERVE FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Revaluation 

Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Reserved for Revaluation Expenses..................................... $240,230 

 

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................. $240,230 

 

 

ARTICLE X.        CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Capital Reserve 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 356,283 

Capital Projects ...................................................................... 182,500 

Reserved ................................................................................. 325,000 

USDA Debt Reserve .............................................................. 488,300 

 $1,352,083    

 

  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Capital 

Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

   

Land Transfer Tax Collections .............................................. 300,000 

Investment Earnings................................................................. 20,000 

County Contribution .............................................................. 325,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 707,083 

                     $1,352,083 

 

ARTICLE XI. SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the School Capital 

Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 694,038 

HS Building Capital Outlay  .................................................. 150,000 

Camden Plantation Funds for Capital Outlay ........................ 441,217 

           $1,285,255 

 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the School  

Capital Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 

2016.  

Local Option Sales Tax .......................................................... 350,000             

Investment Earnings................................................................... 6,000 

Camden Plantation ................................................................. 150,000 

County Contribution .............................................................. 323,783            

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 455,472 

 $1,285,255  

            

 

 

Page 71 of 154



ARTICLE XII.     DISMAL SWAMP VISITOR CENTER FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Dismal Swamp 

Visitor Center Fund for the purpose of operating the Center with funds received from 

NCDOT for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

 

Center Operating Expenses .................................................. $161,180 

 

DOT Funds............................................................................. 142,857 

Gift Shop Contribution .............................................................. 7,500 

Tourism Authority Contribution ................................................ 7,500 

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... …3,323 

 $161,180 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Dismal Swamp Gift 

Shop Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Gift Shop Revenues ............................................................... $20,100 

 

Gift Shop Expenses ................................................................ $20,100 

  

       

ARTICLE XIII. COMMUNITY PARK TRUST FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Community Park 

Trust Fund for the upkeep and maintenance of the Community Park, Senior Trail, Dismal 

Swamp Bike Trail, Shiloh Landing and the One Mill Park Project for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Park Operations ........................................................................ $3,050 

 

Interest........................................................................................ 1,500 

Fund Balance Appropriated ....................................................... 1,550 

 $3,050 

                                                                                                            

ARTICLE XIV.   REGISTER OF DEEDS AUTOMATION ENHANCEMENT 

   AND PRESERVATION FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Register of Deeds 

Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund for the purpose of funding for computer 

and imaging technology for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 

2016. 

Technology .............................................................................. $9,100 

 

Register of Deeds Technology Funds ........................................ 4,000 

Interest........................................................................................... 100 

Fund Balance Appropriated ....................................................... 5,000 

 $9,100 

 

 

 

Page 72 of 154



ARTICLE XV.       CODE ENFORCEMENT REVOLVING FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Code Enforcement 

Revolving Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Demolition Expenses ............................................................... 15,000 

Special Assessments .................................................................. 3,000 

  $18,000 

 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Code 

Enforcement Revolving Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

Fee Collection ............................................................................ 3,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ..................................................... 15,000 

 $18,000 

 

ARTICLE XVI.       WATER/SEWER UPGRADE FEE FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Impact Fee Fund 

for the purpose of collecting funds from new construction projects which will have an 

impact on the infrastructure of Camden County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 

and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Fund Reserve ........................................................................... 22,000 

 

Fees Collected .......................................................................... 20,000 

Interest........................................................................................ 2,000  

 $22,000 

 

ARTICLE XVII.        STORMWATER MANAGEMENT UTILITY FUNDS 

 

                        At the May 5, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting Ordinance No. 

 2014-05-01 was approved.  This Ordinance established the South Mills Watershed, the  

Sawyer’s Creek Watershed, the North River Watershed and the Shiloh Watershed and the 

parcel fee rates relating to each watershed.  The billing and collection will be in the same 

manner as property taxes. 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the South Mills Watershed 

Fund (Fund 36) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Watershed Expenses & Reserve ............................................ $59,125 

 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $59,125 

   

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the Sawyer’s Creek 

Watershed Fund (Fund 37) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

Watershed Expenses & Reserve ............................................ $20,100  

 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $20,100 

Page 73 of 154



 

   

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the North River 

Watershed Fund (Fund 38) for the fiscal year July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Watershed Expenses .............................................................. $18,050  

 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $18,050 

   

The following estimated revenues will be available for funding the 

programs designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the Shiloh 

Watershed Fund (Fund 39) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

Watershed Expenses .............................................................. $19,050  

 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $19,050 

  

 

ARTICLE XVIII.       TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Tourism 

Development Authority budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 

30, 2016. 

General Expenses ..................................................................... 39,000 

Dismal Swamp Visitor Center ................................................... 7,500 

 $46,500 

   

Occupancy Tax Collections ..................................................... 20,000 

Interest Earnings ........................................................................... 500 

Appropriated Fund Balance ..................................................... 26,000 

 $46,500  

 

ARTICLE XX.               TAX PENALTIES SCHOOL FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Tax Penalties 

School Fund budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

   

School Current Expense ........................................................... $3,850 

                                                                                     

  It is estimate that the following revenues will be available in the Tax 

Penalties School Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 

2016. 

Tax Penalties .............................................................................. 3,750 

Interest on Investments ................................................................. 100 

 $3,850 

 

ARTICLE XXII.  EDC PROJECT FUND 

 

  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the EDC Project Fund 

for the purpose of developing the ECO Industrial Park in South Mills for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

Page 74 of 154



 

Capital Outlay ............................................................................... 500 

Economic Dev Incentive .......................................................... 40,000 

 $40,500 

   

Interest earned ............................................................................... 500 

Fund Balance Appropriated ..................................................... 40,000 

 $40,500 

 

ARTICLE XXIII SCHOOL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

  SECTION 1 – The appropriations to the Board of Education, first, shall 

be made from any such funds which are dedicated to the use of the schools, and secondly, 

shall be made from the general county fund revenues to the extent necessary to meet the 

approved appropriation. 

 

  SECTION 2 – For purposes of summary only as the actual figures are 

contained in the Budget Ordinance, the total appropriation for Current Expense from the 

General Fund is $2,072,942. 

 

  SECTION 3 – Except as otherwise provided in this Budget Ordinance, 

this Budget Ordinance hereby incorporates by reference in its entirety the “PROPOSED 

BUDGET OF THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2015 and ENDING JUNE 30, 2016” as presented 

to the Board of Commissioners at their meeting in May 2015, and all language in said 

Proposed Budget is incorporated into this Ordinance as if it were included within the 

body of this Ordinance.  Said Proposed Budget may hereafter be referred to as the 

“School Budget”. The county budget does not include any special appropriation for the 

supplement for teachers’ salaries.  This will have to be included in the school budget. 

 

 

ARTICLE XXIV. OTHER PROVISIONS 

 

  SECTION 1 – The Camden County Budget Officer is hereby authorized 

to transfer appropriations within a fund as contained herein under the following 

conditions: 

 

(a) He may transfer amounts between objects of expenditure within a 

department except salary amounts without limitations. 

 

(b) He may transfer amounts up to $5,000 between departments of the same 

fund with an official report on such transfers at the next regular meeting of 

the Board of Commissioners. 

 

(c) He may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency 

appropriation within any fund. 

 

(d) He will assign legal costs to departments based upon the legal issue 

involved. 

 

(e) He is authorized to approve expenditures up to seven thousand dollars. 

 

Page 75 of 154



SECTION 2 - All legal outstanding encumbrances at June 30, 2015 are 

hereby carried forward and re-appropriated as an amendment to the budget for the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016. 

 

 

ARTICLE XXV. TAX  LEVY 

 

  SECTION 1 – There is hereby levied at the rate of sixty-four cents (64 

cents) per One Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 

1, 2015, for the purpose of raising the revenue listed in the General Fund, Article II., 

Section 2, of this Ordinance. 

 

  SECTION 2 – There is hereby levied at the rate of four cents (4 cents) per 

One Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2015, 

for the purpose of raising the revenue to equal the expenditures listed as CH&S Fire 

Commission Four Cents and South Mills Fire Commission Four Cents in the General 

Fund, Article II, Section 1, of this Ordinance. 

 

  SECTION 3 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 1 and 2 above is based 

upon a total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $961,124,336 and an 

estimated collection rate of ninety-six percent (96%) for real property and ninety-nine 

percent (99%) for vehicles. 

 

  SECTION 4 – There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of one cent (1 cent) 

per One Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for the taxes as of January 1, 

2015, located within the South Mills Fire Protection District for the purpose of raising the 

revenue listed in the South Mills Fire Commission Fund, Article V., of this Ordinance. 

 

  SECTION 5 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 4 above is based upon 

a total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $379,089,182 with an 

estimated collection rate of ninety-six point twenty-eight percent (96%). 

 

  SECTION 6 – There is hereby levied at the rate of one cent (1 cent) per 

One Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2015, 

located within the Courthouse-Shiloh Fire Protection District for the purpose of raising 

the revenue listed in the Courthouse-Shiloh Fire Commission Fund, Article IV, of the 

Ordinance. 

 

  SECTION 7 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 6 above is based upon 

a total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $633,992,417 and an estimated 

collection rate of ninety-six point twenty-eight percent (96%). 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Page 76 of 154



A public hearing on this Budget Ordinance was held on June 8, 2015. 

 

This Budget Ordinance was adopted on the 16th day of June, 2014 with Commissioners 

Sandra Duckwall, Garry Meiggs, Michael McLain, Clayton Riggs, and Randy Krainiak 

voting aye, and no Commissioner voting no. 

 

    CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

    ______________________________________ 

    Michael McLain, Chair 

     

    ______________________________________ 

    Sandra Duckwall, Vice-Chairman 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________              ______________________________ 

                                                                                         Michael R. Renshaw 

Clerk to the Board                                                           Budget Officer/County Manager 

 

 

     

  

   

Page 77 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.C 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th

, 2015 

Attachments:    

Submitted By: Budget Officer 

 

ITEM TITLE:    Resolution No. 2015-06-03 - to establish  

Board Salaries for FY2015-2016 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

  

Resolution No. 2015-06-03 establishes Camden County Board salaries which are 

included in Budget Ordinance No. 2015-06-02.  

 

The Budget Hearing was held on June 8
th

, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Motion to Approve Resolution No. 2015-06-03  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 78 of 154



Resolution No. 2015-06-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ESTABLISH 

SALARIES AND COMPENSATION FOR VARIOUS BOARDS AND 

COMMISSIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

 

 

Whereas, the Camden County Board of Commissioners desires to provide reasonable 

compensation for service on various boards and commissions of the County; 

 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Camden County Board of Commissioners meeting this 

_16th_ day of June 2015 in Camden Village, Camden County, North Carolina does hereby 

establish the following salaries and compensation for the stated boards and commissions  for the 

period beginning  July 1, 2015 and  ending  June 30, 2016 (FY2015-2016), 

 

Section 1:  BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

Chair $50 / meeting with Board  

$50 / Election Day, canvass day, and instruction day, 

Plus $ .575 / mile for travel 

 

Members $40 / meeting  

$40 / day on Election Day and canvass day   

Plus $. 575 / mile for travel 

 

Chief Judge $150.00 / day for Election Day  

$40 and canvass day, and instruction day 

$20 for pick-up day 

 $.575 / mile for canvass day and instruction day,  

 

Judges $20 for instruction day, Election Day at $120.00 / day 

 

Assistants Election Day at $100.00 / day, 

$20 for instruction day 

 

Section 2:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Chair  $550.00 / month, plus $.575 / mile for travel 

 

Vice-chair/ $525.00 / month, plus $.575 / mile for travel 

Member  

 

Commissioners shall receive a payment of $150.00 / day for any meeting or day for travel 

to/from meeting, lasting more than four hours and out of the county (35 mile radius of the 

Courthouse).  Special meetings and budget work sessions in addition to the two regularly 

scheduled Board of Commissioners meetings will be compensated $75 and up to $75 for 

attendance at other board meetings that they have been appointed to and not already 

compensated for by those boards.                             

                                                                                      

 

Page 79 of 154



                               

 

Section 3: PLANNING BOARD AND ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

   $30.00 / meeting plus $.575 / mile for travel 

 

Section 4:  SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 

 Chairman $35.00 / meeting plus $ .575 / mile for travel 

 

Members $30.00 / meeting plus $ .575 / mile for travel 

 

Section 5:  ALBEMARLE COMMISSION APPOINTMENT 

$30.00 / meeting plus $.575 / mile for travel and meal if required 

 

Section 6:  AGING ADVISORY COUNCIL 

                                   $30.00 / meeting plus $.575 / mile for travel and meal if required 

 

Section 7:                   RECREATION BOARD 

   $30.00 / meeting plus $.575 / mile for travel 

 

Section 8:                   JURY COMMISSION (Does not meet FY14-15) 

                                    $ 7.25 / hour for hours worked compiling jury list 

 

Section 9:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

  $30.00 / meeting plus $.575 / mile for travel 

 

Section 10:  SENIOR CENTER BOARD 

   $30.00 / meeting 

 

Section 11:  LIBRARY BOARD (Added 9/3/13) 

   $30.00 / meeting 

 

Section 12:  AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD (Added 9/3/13) 

   No Compensation 

    

   

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ (SEAL) 

Angela L. Wooten  

Clerk to the Board    

        

                                                                   ____________________________________ 

                                                                         Chairman Michael McLain 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.D 

 

 NEW BUSINESS 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (22 Pages) 

Submitted By: Administration  

  
 

ITEM TITLE:   Fee Schedule for FY 2015-2016   
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
The Public Hearing was held on June 8

th
, 2015 

   

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Motion to approve the fee Schedule for FY 2015-2016 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 81 of 154



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

FY 2015-2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Hearing was held on June 8th, 2015 

Page 82 of 154



TABLE OF CONTENTS  

 

 

Building Inspection/Planning 1 

GIS Related Fee Schedule 5 

Fee Schedule for Abatement of Property 6 

Parks/Recreation Policies/Fees 7 

Register of Deeds Schedule of Fees 8 

Sheriff Department Fees 9 

Pet Licenses 9 

Senior Center Fees 10 

Senior Trail Use Fees 11 

Golf Cart Permits  13 

Beer and Wine 13 

South Camden Water Rate Schedule 14 

South Camden Sewer Rate Schedule 15 

Copies of Public Records 17 

Public Library Fees 18 

Watershed Fees 19 

Related Information 20 

Page 83 of 154



CAMDEN COUNTY 
BUILDING INSPECTIONS AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

RESIDENTIAL, MODULAR, & COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION (UP TO 20,000 SQ. FEET) 
Minimal Required New Construction Permit Fees: ( 1 )  State Fee (Residential only) 10.00; (2) 
Base Building Fee 0.25 cents per square foot; (3) Electrical Fee 0. 1 5  cents per square foot; (4) 
Plumbing Fee 75.00; (5) Mechanical Fee 1 00.00; (6) Insulation Fee 75.00. Optional Fees: 
Temporary Power Pole 75.00. Commercial buildings are subject to other fees listed here after. 

Base Fee Up to 20,000 Sq. Ft. $0.25/Sq. Ft. Each Sq. Ft. over 20,000 
Minimum Fee $ 1 00.00 State Fee 

ELECTRICAL 
Residential Over 500 SQFT $0.15/Sq. Ft. Service Repair 
Minimum Fee $75.00 Service Change 
Temporary Service $75.00 Mfg. Home Service 

PLUMBING 
Plumbing (New Installs) $75.00 Plumbing (Repairs) 

MECHANICAL 
Minimum Fee $1 00.00 Additional Units 
Repair / Service Change $75.00 Same Size Change Out 

INSULATION 
Minimum Fee $75.00 

NATURAL GAS HOOKUP (RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES) 
Minimum Fee (structures existing prior to 2003) $35.00 
Minimum Fee (structures built on/after Jan 1 , 2003) $75.00 

MANUFACTURED HOMES 
Singlewide: $250.00 Doublewide: $350.00 

ADDITIONS - Includes Service Systems 
Up to 400 Square Feet $ 1 50.00 

SWIMMING POOLS & SPAS 
Inground $150.00 

Triplewide: $400.00 

Over 400 Square Feet 

Above Ground 

DET ACHED GARAGES, STORAGE, AND UTILITY BUILDINGS 
Minimum FeelUnder 400 Sq. Ft. $75.00 Over 400 Sq. Ft. 

CARPORT/POLE BARN/POLE SHED 
Minimum Fee $75.00 

SINGLE UTILITY INSPECTION 
Trade Permit Minimum Fee $50.00 

Over 834 Sq. Ft. 

$0. 15/Sq. Ft. 
$10.00 

$75.00 
$75.00 
$75.00 

$75.00 

$25.00 
$0.00 

$0.37/Sq. Ft. 

$50.00 

$0. 1 8/Sq. Ft. 

$0.09/Sq. Ft. 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 
Revised July 1, 2014 

Page 10/4 

Page 84 of 154



SIGNS 
1 6  Square Feet or Less 
Over 32 Sq. Ft. on One Side 

$0.00 
$ 100.00 

17 - 32 Sq. Ft. on One Side 
Electrical on/for/around Sign 

DEMOLITION Fire, Safety, & EPA Regs 
Pre-inspection required for safety and hazardous materials and referral to proper 
channels if found. 

AL TERA TIONS / REPAIRS / IMPROVEMENTS 
Up to $5000 Gross Retail Price $75.00 

$50.00 
$50.00 

$75.00 

Over $5000 Gross Retail 50% Additions Fees 

Alterations include work within existing structures and upgrading existing services and do NOT 
include Additions, New Construction, Proving Power to structures not previously having power 
or New Service to existing buildings. 

RENOVATION FEES 
Renovations � New Construction Fees 

Farm Buildings are exempt UNLESS: 
• Any electrical installation is performed 
• Any portion of building is used for sleeping quarters 
• Building is used for business rather than personal use of farmer and immediate family 

MOVING OF ANY BUILDING WITHIN OR INTO THE COUNTY 
Minimum New Construction Fees 

WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS 
Turbines 
Reinspections 

$2,000.00 
$100.00 each 

COMMERCIAL PERMIT PRICES (extras) 

MECHANICAL: 
Walk-in Cooler $40.00 ea. 
Commercial Cooking Hood $40.00 ea. 
HV AC Fire damper/smoke damper $5.00 ea. 

ELECTRICAL 
Electric duct heater 
Temporary Service w/ Trailer 
0- 1 00 Each Receptacle/Switch/Fixture 
Each additional opening 
Subpanel, transformer, generator 

PLUMBING: 
Minimum Permit Fee 
Per fixture, trap, or similar devices 
Per sprinkler head 

$75.00 
$5.00 
$5.00 

$ 10.00 ea. 
$100.00 ea. 
$75.00 
$0. 10  ea. 
$20.00 ea. 

Fuel dispensers, "freestanding" parking lot light poles, manufactured home pedestals 
Exhaust fans/water heater/RAC/Spa/Motors and machinery not specified 

$5.00 ea. 
$5.00 ea. 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 
Revised July 1. 201-1 

Page 2 0/4 

Page 85 of 154



COMMERCIAL PERMIT PRICES (extras - Continued) 

GAS 
Minimum Pennit Fee 
Per outlet 

NEGLIGENCE FEES 

$50.00 
$5.00 

Inspection Negligence Fee (Applies To): $100.00 
• Inspections called for but not ready 
• Skipping any applicable mandatory inspection 
• Re-Inspections called for without first correcting discrepancies noted by inspector 
• Wrong sub-contractor other than on Trade Affidavit 

No Pennit Negligence Fee (Applies To): $Varies 
• Building or Trade Related Activities perfonned without first obtaining and paying 

for a building pennit. Shall result in overall doubling of penn it fee. 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES DUE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE 
All Building Pennit fees must be paid in full at time of pennit issuance. 

• Applicants will be notified within 3-5 days after building permit application has 
been processed, reviewed, and approved. At that time permit fees are due. 

• No building pennit will be issued without payment of penn it fees due. 

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT FEES 

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT FEES DUE AT TIME OF APPLICATION 
• All fees for Land Use / Development MUST be paid in full at time of APPLICATION. 

Zoning Pennit 
Conditional Use Pennit 
Special Use Pennit 

Rezoning Fee 
Up to 10 Acres 
Over 1 0 Acres 

Interpretation Challenge / Appeal 

Subdivision Fee 
Major Subdivision 

Sketch Plan Level 
Preliminary Plan Level 
Final Plan Level 

Minor Subdivision 
Private Access Subdivision 

$25.00 
$400.00 
$400.00 

$650.00 
$650.00 

$250.00 * 

$150.00 
$200.00 
$50.00 
$200.00 
$200.00 

Temporary Use Pennit 
Variance 
Ordinance Amendment Request 

Plus $10 Per Acre 

Per Lot 
Per Lot 
Per Lot ** 
Per Lot ** 
Per Lot ** 

$250.00 
$500.00 
$500.00 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 
Revised July 1, 2014 

Page 3 0/4 

Page 86 of 154



Planned Unit Development 

Concept Plan 
Master Plan and Amendments 
Preliminary Plat Level 
Final Plat Level 

Commercial Site Plan Review 

Stormwater Review Fees / Deposit 

Major Subdivision 
(more than 5 acres) 

See Rezoning 
$1,000.00 
$200.00 
$50.00 

$25.00 

Minor Commercial Site Plan Review 
(3 acres or less) 

Major Commercial Site Plan Review *** 
(more than 3 acres) 

LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY 

Fill Permit $50.00 

NOTES: 

(Includes Conditional Use Permit Fee) 
Per Lot 
Per Lot 

$6,000.00 

$3,700.00 

$5,400.00 

* Subject to refund in the case of a successful appeal if so ordered by the Board of Adjustment 

** For major subdivisions / PUD, a fifteen dollar ($ 1 5) credit per lot will be granted if the final 
plat is submitted both on Mylar in accordance with the Unified Development Ordinance and on 
diskette, in a format compatible (shape file / geodatabase) with the County's Geographic 
Information System (GIS) software. 

* * * The County storm water review deposit / fee will be set up as an escrow wherein the 
applicant recovers any deposits in excess of actual costs incurred, or replenishes the escrow if 
costs drop below $1000 prior to project approval. 

A refund of Land Use Development fees will be given if an application is withdrawn prior to 
commencement of the approval process (staff review for Zoning Permits; Board * agenda for all 
other items). No refund shall be given after any portion of the approval process has begun (e.g., 
zoning permit issued or item placed on Board agenda.) 

* - Board of Adjustments, Planning Board, or Board of Commissioners 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 
Revised July 1, 2014 

Page 4 0/4 

Page 87 of 154



r«ndyti Coun

ftf frb-tuto far «flrj rfq»?f »«fa'** "Bto

WARffTOBt
Printer

$0.50

yo|«rPHcQ

%%n\\

11x17

$0.75

$1.00

$1.50
$5.00

Plotter

T*™
Ida

Up to36x41 $10.00

lBiUCTIWfW MgPiA

Pnto IflVfn

Price: $5.00 perCO
$ 25.00 Tor first layer (shape file)
$ 10.00 for each additional layer (shape flic)

v^td ComprifftH Plri<ai Orthog'i^W"gfct

The entire set ofdigital orthophotography for the county.

^ %,000° nim™mtnwmK
Any cwtuinlA-d IMS pHccls vtill he charged aper hour fee «f $60.«0,h,.

Cwtidea County Street Mapi $3.00

Page 88 of 154



Fee Schedule for Abatement
ofProperty by County

Grass Cutting- $300/acre

Grass Cutting $150/halfacre

Debris Removal $500 plus tipping fees

Car Removal **A11 Cost Incurred by County**

Administrative Cost- $7500
(This will be added to each Abatement)

Removal ofStructure-**All Cost Incurred by County**

♦♦Fees are for Chapter 94 for Public Nuisances and Chapter 90 for Abandoned and Junk
Motor Vehicles"

♦♦TbisFee Schedule is only ifthe County abates the property. Ifacontractor *»}&**
perfoim any abatement then the cost will be the contracted price plus an Administrative

see.

♦♦Payment for abatement is doe 30 days after the date ofthe abatement If the fees are
not paid then aTax Uen will be applied to the property.**

Page 89 of 154



Recreation Youth Sports Registration Fees:

Youth Volleyball and Basketball $35.00

Maximum fee per household per season 70.00

Out of County additional registration fee 20.00

Recreation Youth Sports Sponsor Fee:

Team sponsor fee $200.00
(Fee pays for team Shirt and Individual Trophies)

Saturday Night Open Gym for Basketball

County residents $1.00
Out of County residents... $3.00

Thursday Night Open Gym for Adult Volleyball

County residents $1.00
Out of County residents $3.00

Page 90 of 154



REGISTER OF DEEDS FEES EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1. 2011

Make checks payable to: Camden County Register of Deeds

Deeds of Trust & Mortgages $561s115 pages $4 eacn extra page

All other documents $261st 15 pages,$4each extrapage

Plats $21 per plat

Plat copy $1 per page, $5 for certified copy per

page

Right of Way/Highway $211st page $2 each extra page

Multi-Documents $25 additional fee

Subscequent Documents with $25 additional fee

UCC 1 or 2 pages in writing $38

3-10 pages in writing $45 + $2 each extra page

Copy of UCC statement $2 each page

Certified copies ofVital Records $10 each

Amended Birth & Death Certificate $10 ROD fee or $15 NC Vital Records

Marriage License $60

Delayed Marriage or Birth Certificate $20 including 1 certified copy

Corrected Vital Records $10 including 1 certified copy

Legitimations $10

State Vital Record Search $10

State Vital Records for networkaccess $241st copy, $15 each extracopy

All Military Records or Satisfaction No Fee

Notary Oath $1°

Page 91 of 154



 

Sheriff Dept. Fee Schedule 

Revised June 12, 2015 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

Sheriff's Department 

Fee Schedule 

 

Office Fees: 

Carry Concealed Permit 

 New .............................................................................................................................................$90.00 

 Renew ........................................................................................................................................$75.00 

Weapon Purchase Permit ................................................................................................................ $5.00 

Fingerprints ..........................................................................................................................................$10.00 

Civil Process Service 

 In-State ......................................................................................................................................$30.00 

 Out/State ..................................................................................................................................$50.00 

Out of County mental Patient Transport .......................................................................... $150.00 

Diskette Copy of Photos .................................................................................................................$10.00 

Dog/Cat Tag Fee 

 Annual ........................................................................................................................................ $5.00 

 Lifetime ....................................................................................................................................$30.00 

Kennel Fee.............................................................................................................................................$20.00 

 

 

Page 92 of 154



( 

93 

Rent .. a Pullcy ror Ihe Camtice County �tnlor Ceneer 

I. 11l� Camden County Onard ufCummbsion�rs permits the U!Ie ur the CiUl1\J�n 
C�nle, .. ncr 5:00 p.m. Mundmy thru\llh Fridmy 10 Buvemmen1ul �se�i.:s urn! 
\:lyle dubs and other dubs bcncnlina the Nunty wiltrout \:hOllt provhJ.:d Ihe 
mC\:tins or illthcrinl i. 10 (unduct buslnt" �r1oinlnl tu thai uf4\:ncy ur dub. 

2. Olhe, nun-prod. aieMI •• , .:Iubsa (cl�ic: clubs, dance clubs. bridK' clubs), 
Individuals and ISSSOChatiolUl are prnnln .. -d to usc th:J Center uncr $:00 p.m. Monday lhroup Fridray by plying the following rca: 

All DI' ..... ..... ...... , .... , ............... SIOO.OO 
Evenlnl8 Only .•..•..••....... , . t ••••••••••••• '0,00 
Use or the Ki.chel ... .. ..... . , .......... " .•. '0.00 

1. For-pIOn. flrma. alenci .. etc. are pcnnlHcd CO U. the Center after 5:00 p.m. 
by payin. th. (ollowln. feta. A ror-prone sKeney and/or nnn would be 
Tup�are Products. Mcuy Kay Cosmetlet. Dank o(Currit�k. Wei pi
Walchers, elc. Ir an Indl�ldual or IJroup il attempln. to make I pNtlt rrom I 
s.:rvh:e or lh:m to be provided or sold .1 the Senior Center, it will be 
considered I ror·protlt situation. 

Maximum o( 2 houn use . . ... . .. . .. .. .... $'0.00 
Maximum 0(" houn use .................. 65.00 
Mulmum of6lwun use . ......... . . .. ... 100.00 
Mulmum of I houn use ..... .. .. .. . . .... 120.00 
Use orlhe Kit,hen ......................... 50.00 

-t. R�ntlll f"�1 "ill nol include the uso ur Ihe �cnior Cillz.:n" Cnd\ Room, 
E�c:n:lse Room or lhe ornee "pacc In Ihe C\lnlcr. 

S. Ah:oholic boYero"" QI'C nol pennincd in Ihe S�nlor Cenler or .:I!I4:whcn: on 
County property. 

�. No cunfet" ur like malcriall'lIl1uwcd in 1M Cl:ntcr. No ,treomcn or like 
ubjectl Mr ulfowcd 10 be hun. fNm 'he \:\:ilinl uflhe C\:nt�r. /\11 fra. .. h un" 
�,ba .. InUIt k n:muvN by ItHt \l.tfl' 

'0 J"dhoiJt/�I, Jillnln"lh.: U.,. '\�,\:'lWne r.mn "ill be n."fuin.'\I In "nn';�" tI.:
I'ultl, in Itt. ",,,,1unl ul' S.'O(m_ pa)lIbl. tu Cumd-:n ('ounly) rn, lhe u. ur 
the C�nICf aM an �lllunld II '0 (mDllf pcaYllbl. to C:wnd�n ('ounly) rur the 
". "rlhe I&ih:hcn "h�n ubtalnln. tM k.:, 10 lhe C\1nh:r. f-:n Jrt lu t. 
"!Ii\,,. rur Y"lunl,,'Cf tOi ... �P'lftnwnt .. �uch" �nol\:,,'S Uepl.l'oup:rutho• 
1!,I.msiun �r\·k .. �huuls.IIun1\",akc,..· ('Iub.l.ions l'1ult,luni"f W"f11\:,ft 
l'luli. RunliSIU .In" "ttNrt. 

l�pn�i'J \\tll "'- Nlumt\I \\hen ,he t-:) lu 1M S�niu' .:�nh:r i1 n:1'"",,'\J. 
rnn iJin, lhe r�ilili�1 JIII.:tl in Ihr ,:",�ili"ft in \\hi\:h Ih�1 \\�N "ttl"", 
\\ hen 'hf u�, ,\IT" ,,. .u1\l ",ld"nw "''-. ",\:n J;unu".:d "r Idl impn'l"'!,ly \:It:.an. 
",J .and.aU li&rnhhinp .&n"'\an'll'UIW hil\f ��n Mumnl tu th.:ir ,'n"inlll pl,I(\:' 

o .  

Page 10 

Page 93 of 154

awooten
Cross-Out

awooten
Cross-Out



"a
 

Q,)
 

O'Q
 

It)
 

i� 
-
\> 

.
a

 
"

 

rl 
� �

 ..
 

I 
,'\.

--
.• 

' -.. 
•

 

..
.. 

.. 0 1
 

�t
� 

lS
 ..

 
.#

 
,

 

• 
t �

 
rJ

 
! 

! p 
-

r 
. 

03
 

II
 

'I
 4

�
1 

i 
II 

e!
; 

I
f 

' I
 t i

l I
f 

I 
= 1

-
a 

�
�

 
,( 

i.-
f 

8ft
 

�
 

�I 
f 

nr
 �

 
a

 
�

�
 

I 
l; 

If 1
 I

I ,f
! 

l 
ije

 � 
I 

!r 
I�o

 
I, 

I 
� 

isi
 !

 

t 
!f 

II!
 I

n i
 

� 
li�

 t 

i 
!. 

Ilf
 I

 
[ 

f 
II 

if 
� f 

�t
 

• 
I 

So 
.. 

I i 
il 

iiI 
i! 

j 
�a 

.�
 �

 

'i. 

Page 94 of 154

awooten
Cross-Out



95 

I\ny persun not invit�-d to th. speclol �v�nt shllli be trespassins und !thall be 
lIubj«t to th. sum. penalties u • trespasser under Section •. u( this OrdinlU1\:G, 

2. The tounty mlU1a,,�r shall develop lUI IIpplh:ution ror special even I, on ,h. Senior 
Tmil IU1d \:04:h penon request ina I special c\'cnt to be held on the Senior Trail 
:lhull submit an QPplh:alion 10 lhe county monoKer or his deslJl,l1dtcd 
rcprcsenta1!\·e. Suc:h applicotlon shill include I sfa&ned oncI notarizccl statement 
ind�mniJ)in8 W1d holdlnl humt,. the County. its employees. IU1d IIl1entl lium 
any and all InJuri .. or dlmq . .... ',n. out or 1ht special event and the use of tho 
Senior Trail. 

3. Th. IIppllc:ant shedl cleon and repair the Senior Trail 10 lhe same condilion it WIlS 
prior 10 the special event. Iflhe Senior Trail Is not cleaned or repaired back tu thIS 
prHVent condition, the county m&UUllor shall nm use My deposit to reimburse 
the county ror the cost or ony ch:anlnl or repaJn Wld. if such deposit is no' 
sufficient to rclmbune the county ror lhe clnn'n. ond repairs, the county 
mtU1s¥or sholl �irect the county ottomey 10 take ony necessary Betlolll In court or 
otherwise to collect the lU110unl required to reimburse lhe county (or th, cost of 
cleonlnl and repair plus ony Bdmlnistntivo and Icaal costs incurred while trylnl 
to obtlln the reimbursement due to the county. 

4, The county manler may deny any IIppllc:.,lon if. in hi. opinion. the event woul� 
be injurious to Ihe Senior Trail. Any person denied U!e or the Senior Trail by Ihe 
county m"",,scr may appeal such decision to the Bowd of County Commissions 
al their next rcauhv mcctin .. followinl the date of 'he county mon_ser's deniol. 

S, The county mMf1aer or hi. designated representative may eSlablish "deadline for 
the submission of appllcatlonl und he shull mokv his decblon within II NlISOnuble 
�riod or time (ullowinl submission of IU1 IIppliclillon. Such decision shoJi bet 
made in writln, &Utd Slven 10 the applicant, 

. 
6. The cuunty mannKer tlr his de�lynu'c:d n:proslnlliUve !lhllil collect .. fee for the usc 

of the S�nlor rrllU and a deposl' for ony posslbl" JeunG,'. Such r�" and d�pt)!1t 
shull he cull"tud at the time when the uppll.:allon I. submincd. The fee !Shall '" 
I.'lIII.bllsh"",, by Nso'utlon nfthe \!uunly cOlnrnisslum:n. I'he Jl:poltit :thill' be ctlual 
It) the (\'CJ. Rov,,'11ua rcc.lv� from the feo shill I nne be used to reimburse Ihe 
�uunt, f"r �y ClpmSC. Incwml due 10 the spccllll event. and IIny rcmainln¥ (1:, 
NVl:nucr !lhull be d\:pu�ih .. d In,o the S-=nfor Trtll. 'frusa Func.L 

7, ,,,. county miU1ftSdf or his J�sf,,"lIccd repmcntuI'vc 3hall return tht J,:poJil ttl 'M 
.Ipplicunl (ollowlnglhe \tvcne Bncllltlcr inspection. The l!�push �hQn � ft\JlJ(,,'\I 
hy .In .U11UW\t �u.aI to Jn1 \:uSlS incurred by the county ro, -=!nnlnl up aller 'he 
�Pfti'" .:\'.:nt Uf mtlkiny uny n:rain (il�"\I hy 'M \I\'cnl ur puldcip3l11. in the 
(v.:nt, 

Page 12 

Page 95 of 154

awooten
Cross-Out

awooten
Cross-Out



. .  

96 

Fees collected at the Camden County Tax Office 

Golf Cart Permits 
Annual Fee ............•... ......... .. , ........ $ 20.00 

Late Listing Fee (for sticker}................ 50.00 

Non-Compliance .... ... .. ..... ... .. . . ..... . ... 150.00 

BEER AND WINE FEES 

(License period: May llhrough April 30 each year) 

Every person engaged in the business of selling beer IlIld wine in the 
following amounts: 

Beer at retail: 
"OfT premises" •....... , ................ .... '" ....... t .".. . .. .. •• S5.oo 

"On prcmisCl'· .. .... . I .... ... . .. .. ..... ...... ........ t .. . ...... .. ........ $1 5.00 

Beer Iton and ott Premises" ........................ $20.00 

WID. at nt.Ur 
l'Off' premises" ............................ , ........ ,... .... ..... S I 0.00 
"On premiscs" ....................................... SI'.OO 
Wine "on and off premises" ........................ $25.00 

Beer aDd Wlae, 
Beer and Wine "oCfpremlscs" . .. ...... .. . . . . . . ... $15.00 

Deer and Wine "on premises" .... .. . . . . .. . ....... . $30.00 

Beer/wine "on" otT premises" ...... .. .. . ... . ..... $4'.00 

Page 13 

Page 96 of 154

awooten
Cross-Out

awooten
Cross-Out



 

South Camden Water Rates  
(effective July 1, 2015) 

 
Water Tap Fees: 

¾ inch  $4,000.00  4 inch   $7,000.00 

1 inch   $4,500.00  6 inch   $8,000.00 

2 inch   $5,000.00  6 inch fire svc $4,000.00 

3 inch   $6,000.00  Hwy158/Bore $2,000.00 

 

Water Charges: 0-2000 gal.     $24.00 per month 

 Additional Usage:   

                    2001-5000 gal.     $5.50 per 1,000 gal 

                    5001-10,000         $6.00 per 1,000 gal 

                   10,001-15,000       $6.60 per 1,000 gal 

                   15,001-20,000       $7.20 per 1,000 gal 

                   20,001 and up        $7.80 per 1,000 gal 

 

Local Govt/Board of Education        same as above 

Bulk Water                                        $6.06 per 1,000 gal 

Fire Service (sprinkler systems)       $24.00 per month 

Commercial master meter accounts charged at the above rates per unit 

served. 

 

Deposits:           

Rent deposit: $200. 

Fire Hydrant Meter: $300. 

 

Charges and Fees: 

Open/reopen/transfer acct.        $15.00 

Reread meter/our read correct   $15.00 

Reread meter/our read incorrect: no charge  

Reconnection Fee: (if not paid by 8am on disconnection day)   

7am-3:15pm     $35.00 

3:16-5:00pm     $60.00 

Late payment penalty: $10.00 

Non Sufficient Funds:  $25.00     

Meter Tampering fee:   $200.00 

Turn off/Turn off fee per occurrence:  $15.00 

Meter testing fee: if accurate $15.00 

No chg if more than 2.5% inaccurate 

*effective June 2009 

Page 97 of 154



 

                              South Camden Sewer Schedule  
(effective July 1, 2015) 

Sewer Base Fee: 

Residential          $27.00 0-2,000 gallons 

Commercial        $37.00 0-2,000 gallons 

Apartments         $27.00 0-2,000 gallons 

& Townhouses 

 

Additional Fees: 

Residential          $6.50 each additional 1,000 gallons 

Commercial        $7.50 each additional 1,000 gallons 

Apartments         $6.50 each additional 1,000 gallons 

 & Townhouses 

High Strength:    $9.50 each additional 1,000 gallons 

School, Day Care, Hospitals, Nursing Homes, Laundromats,  

Restaurants, Doctors, Dentists, Beauty Shops, Grocery Store, 

Convenient Store, Funeral Homes, Car Washes, Dry Cleaners 

 

Commercial: Fees are based on water meter size  

Cost of sewer connection (low pressure main) with ¾ inch water 

service-$8300. 

Cost of sewer connection (4” gravity connection)- $ 3500.  

The cost of sewer connection with larger than ¾ inch water service 

will be the responsibility of the owner, with the possibility of 

capacity fee being paid over time of 3-5 yrs. with no interest.                         

Sewer Capacity Fees 

¾ inch  $ 7,400.       

1 inch  $10,500. 

2 inch  $15,000. 

3 inch  $24,000. 

4 inch  $36,000. 

6 inch  $42,000. 

8 inch  $48,000. 

10 inch  $54,000. 

12 inch  $60,000. 
 

 

Page 98 of 154



 

South Camden Sewer Schedule  
(effective July 1, 2015) 

 

Residential Sewer: Approved for failing systems only. 

 

*Parts and labor: 

For changing service size, location, or repairs for damage to the 

districts property. 

*Parts are calculated at current price of materials due to the 

fluctuation of the market plus 20%.   

*Labor: 

$35 per man per hour 

$75 per hour for backhoe 

$10 per foot for bores up 2” 

*Repairs requiring contracted labor will be charged at invoice cost. 

 

 

Fines for Violation of Fats, Oil and Grease Control Ordinance 
Minor Violations 

Offense 1
st
 Offense 2

nd
 Offense 3

rd
 Offense 4

th
 Offense 

& Up 

Failure to submit records Warning $100 $150 $500 

Inspection hindrance Warning $100 $150 $500 

Failure to maintain on-site records Warning $100 $150 $500 

Failure to meet sample standards Warning $100 $150 $500 

Moderate Violations 

Offense 1
st
 Offense 2

nd
 Offense 3

rd
 Offense 4

th
 Offense 

& Up 

Failure to maintain interceptors in 

proper working order 

$150 $300 $500 $1,000 

Failure to clean out interceptor every 30 

days 

$150 $300 $500 $1,000 

Major Violations 

Source of sewer blockage (minimum)  $500 and not more than $10,000 plus cost of cleaning lines 

Source of sanitary sewer overflow(minimum)                              $1,000 plus cost of cleaning lines 

Falsification of records                                                                  $1,000 

*updated August 2, 2010 

 

Page 99 of 154



 

Public Records Fee Schedule 

Revised June 12, 2015 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

Public Records 

Fee Schedule 

 

Copy Fees: 

 

Public Records (Black /White)  

 8 1/2'” x 11" and 8 ½” x 14 ........................................................................................ $.15/page 

 With printed pictures ................................................................................................. $.30/page 

 11” x 17” ............................................................................................................................ $.35/page 

Public Records (Color) 

 8 1/2'” x 11" with Pictures ......................................................................................... $.50/page 

 

*Counties are not required to create a public record that is not already in 

existence. However, the municipality may elect to create the record if it 

determines that the record will provide an ongoing benefit to the county and/or 

its citizens. 

 

Page 100 of 154



 

Library Fee Schedule 

Revised June 12, 2015 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

Public Library 

Fee Schedule 

 

Copy Fees: 

 

8 1/2'” x 11" and 8 ½” x 14 (Black /White)  ..................................................................... $.10/page 

8 1/2'” x 11" and 8 ½” x 14 (Color) ...................................................................................... $.25/page 

11” x 17” (Black /White) ........................................................................................................... $.20/page 

11” x 17” (Color) .......................................................................................................................... $.50/page 

Incoming Fax ................................................................................................................................ $.10/page 

Inter Library Loan ............................................................................................................................... $2.50 

Proctoring ..............................................................................................................................................$10.00 

 

 

Page 101 of 154



Ratio 40

North River Watershed

n Rate

FCPA Parcels 1,170 $0.64

GA net acres 28,476 $0.25
ERU units 1,037 $10.00

Project Revenue

Total Watershed Revenue

Sawyer's Creek Watershed

# Rate

FCPA parcels 762 $0.64
GA net acres 9,436 $0.25
ERU units 1,969 $10.00

Project Revenue

Total Watershed Revenue

Shiloh Watershed Revenuei

n Rate

FCPA parcels 2,394 $0.64
GA net acres 17,765 $0.25
ERU units 1,397 $10.00

Project Revenue

Total Watershed Revenue

South Mills Watershed Revenue

FCPA parcels 2,917

GA net acres 73,345
ERU units 3,414
Joyce Creek Project
Other Project Revenue

Total Watershed Revenue

Rate

$0.64

$0.32

$12.80

Parcels ERUs Net Acres

North River 1,170 1,037 28,476

Sawyer's Creek 762 1,969 9,436
Shiloh 2,394 1,397 17,765
South Mills 2,917

7,243

3,414 73,345

individual Parcel Fee

$ # $
$748.80 1 $0.64

$7,119.00 1 $0.25
$10,370.00 1 $10.00

$17,489.00

$18,237.80

Individual Parcel Fee

* $
1

1

1

$487.68
$2,359.00

$19,690.00

£22,049.00

$22,536.68

Individual Parcel Fee

# $

1

1

1

$1,532.16

$4,441.25

$13,970.00

$18,411.25

$19,943,41

Individual Parcel Fee

$1,866.88

$23,470.40

$43,699.20
-$50,000.00
$17,169.60

$69,036.48

$10.89

$0.64

$0.25

$10.00

$10.89

$0.64
$0.25

$10.00

$10.89

$0.64

$0.32

$12.80

$13.76

Page 102 of 154



FY 2015-2016 Fee Schedule 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

Fee Schedule 

 

Continuing authority of commission 

Nothing contained in the provisions of this schedule shall be construed to prevent the 

County Board of Commissioners from imposing, from time to time as it may see fit, 

such license taxes as are not specifically defined or included in this schedule, or from 

increasing or decreasing the amount of any fee when not in conflict with State or 

Federal law. 

Same-False statements 

Any person who willfully makes a false statement on any fee application shall be guilty 

of a misdemeanor. 

 

The forgoing instrument was duly approved and adopted at a meeting of the Camden 

County Board of Commissioners, said meeting date June 15th, 2015. 

X
Angela L. Wooten

Clerk to the Board

 

  

 (SEAL)  

  

X
Michael McLain, Chairman

CamdenCounty Board of Commissioners

 
 

 

Page 103 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.E 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Budget Officer &  

 Tax Administrator 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Set the 2015 Tax Rate   
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
The FY 2015-2016 Budget Ordinance includes the tax rate of .68 for 

Property Tax and .01 for Fire Tax per 100 dollars of valuation. 

   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Motion to set the County Property Tax Rate at $.68 per $100 and the 

Fire Tax Rate at $.01 per $100. Watershed fees are to be included on 

tax bills by Watershed District as described in the 15-16 County Fee 

Schedule. 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 104 of 154



Page 105 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.A 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th,

 2015 

Attachments:   1 Attachment 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
  

 

ITEM TITLE:   Draft Meeting Minutes 
  

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 March 16
th

, 2015 – CIP Work Session 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

For Review and Possible Approval 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 106 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.B 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Budget & Finance Officers 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Budget Amendment  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
Adjust Central Communication expenses and budget for VFD 4 cent allocation 

 

   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve Request  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 107 of 154



                               2014-15-BA024 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment is made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2015. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the Dismal Swamp Visitor Center as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

 

106900-512900 Central Communication      $11,500.00 

106900-565100 CH&S VFD 4 Cents       $10,500.00 

106900-568100 SM VFD 4 Cents       $10,500.00 

 

104100-504100 Attorney Fees     $10,000.00 

104700-504110 OLF      $10,000.00 

109990-500000 Contingency     $12,500.00 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to increase allocation for Central Communications 

expenses and 4 Cent VFD Tax Match. 

 

This will result in a decrease of $12,500.00 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency $11,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 15th day of June, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 108 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.C 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 

Submitted By: Dellie Spaulding, Tax 

Specialist 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Dept. 

Monthly Collection Report 

May 2015 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
Taxes collected for ad valorem (real estate), personal business properties, 

vehicle, and other miscellaneous taxes. Also included are payments received 

via the Internet. 

 

   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

FOR COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' APPROVAL 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 109 of 154



Tax Collection Report
'May 2015

Day Amount Amount Name of Account Deposits Internet

1 5,577.54 $35.64- Refund 5,577.54
4 5,851.69 5,851.69
5 6,086.99 $0.44 - short 6,086.99 294.11
6 294.11

14,755.50 14,755.50
7 6,264.99 6,264.99
8 397.09 $0.60 - Over 397.09

11 19,593.88 19,593.88
12 707.19 707.191
13 2,193.72 2,193.72
14 1,407.87 1,407.87
15 1,294.72 $0.20 - Over 1,294.72
18 9,856.99 9,856.99
19 7,992.75 7,992.75
20 44.11 $1.00 - Over 44.11

21 463.68 463.68

22 1,289.65 1,289.65
26 12,104.76 $73.78 - Refund 12,104.76
27 5.543.44 5,543.44
28 6,682.58 6,682.58
29 5,816.96 5,816.96

2,500.00 2,500.00

$116,720.21 $0.00 $116,426.10 $294.11

$116,720.21 $116,426.10

-$109.42 Refund

-$1.80 Over

$0.44 Shortage
$0.00 Adjustment

$116,609.43

Submitted* by:

Approved by:

Date: Lp~ 3~( §

Date:

Page 110 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.D 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 

Submitted By: Various Departments 
  

 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Authorization to Collect 

(August Renewals) 
  

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 August Renewals 
 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

For Review and Possible Approval 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 111 of 154



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CAMDEN

TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County August Ren. Due 9/15/15 (NEW
SYSTEM)

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax receipts
herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set
forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon personal property of the
respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this order shall be a full and sufficient
authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell personal property of such
taxpayers for and on account thereof, in accordance with the law.

SOUTH MILLS COURTHOUSE SHILOH TOTAL

16,803.06 19,211.67 10,192.52 46,207.25

Witness mv hand and official seal this day of

Chairman. Camden County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Camden County

This is to certify that I have received the tax receipts and duplicates for collection
in the amounts as listed herein.

£. (Mdtkd<sr\
ministrator of Camden County

Page 112 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   7.E 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Pages) 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk 
 

 

TITLE:   Elder Abuse Awareness Month 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Elder Abuse Awareness Month in Camden County 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

REVIEW AND APPROVE 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 113 of 154



VULNERABLE ADULT AND ELDER ABUSE

AWARENESS MONTH IN THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN -JUNE 2015

WHEREAS, each year, more than two million vulnerable and older adults are victims of abuse, neglect, and
exploitation, and research has shown that older adults who are abused, neglected and exploited are three times
morelikely to diewithin ten yearsthan thosewho are not;and

WHEREAS, according to national statistics, elder abuse is grossly under reported because vulnerable and older
adultswhoarebeingabusedfindit very difficult to tellanyone due to shame andfear; and

WHEREAS, in 2014 there were almost 23,000 reports of abuse, neglect or exploitation of vulnerable and older
adults made to North Carolina's 100 county departments of social services not only by doctors and other
professionals but byfamily members andconcerned citizensin ourcommunities; and

WHEREAS, Camden County's vulnerable and older adults of all social, economic, racial and ethnic back-grounds
may be targets of abuse, neglect or exploitation, which can occur in families, long-term care settings and
communities; and

WHEREAS, protecting Camden County's vulnerable and older adults is a community responsibility and all
citizens are charged under North Carolina General Statute (GS 108A-102) to report suspected abuse, neglect or
exploitationto the CamdenCounty DepartmentSocial Services; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina enacted the nation's first elder abuse law in 1973;and

WHEREAS, May8, 2015 throughJune 22, 2015 is Vulnerable Adult and Elder Abuse Awareness Month in North
Carolina and this time frame ties the awareness period to both the Mothers' Day and Fathers' Day holidays, in the
hopesofreinforcing the spirit ofrespecting and valuing, not just parents,but allelders; and

WHEREAS,we allhave a responsibility to support the safety,welfare, and dignity of Camden County's vulnerable
and older adults;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Camden County Board of Commissioners, hereby proclaims May 8 - June 22 2015, as
"ELDER ABUSE AWARENESS MONTH" in the County of Camden, and commend its observance to all citizens,
asking them to wear purple Elder Abuse Awareness ribbons, and we further do hereby proclaim June 15, 2015,
"WORLD ELDER ABUSE AWARENESS DAY"; and urge all citizens to work together to help protect elder adults
from abuse, neglect, and exploitation because it is imperative that we refuse to tolerate the indignity of Elder
Abuse..

Adopted, this the dayofApril, 2015, inCamden CountyNorthCarolina.

P. Michael McLain, Chairman

Board of Commissioners

ATTEST: (SEAL)
AngelaL.Wooten
Clerk to the Board

Page 114 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.F 

 

Consent Agenda  

 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (10 Pages) 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, HR 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Personnel Policy Revision 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

To strike through the words, six months of, in an effort to make it just 

read probationary period as there are not only six months but nine 

and twelve months probationary periods for various departments.   

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

To approve the revision to Article VIII. Holidays and Leaves of 

Absence, Section 10. Vacation Leave: Payment Upon Separation 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 115 of 154



 

Page | 26  
 

ARTICLE VIII.  HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
 
Section 1. Policy 
 
The policy of the County is to provide vacation leave, sick leave, and holiday leave to all full-time and part-time 
employees in a regular position with County.   
 
Leave balances should accrue with each payroll at a pro-rated amount when employees work or are on a paid leave 
status.  Leave balances should be printed on payroll checks or provided to employees with each paycheck, including 
net accrued sick leave, vacation, holiday leave, and compensatory leave. 
 

Section 2. Holidays 
 
The policy of the County is to follow the holiday schedule as published by the State of North Carolina each year. The 
schedule for the calendar year will be published by December 1 of the previous calendar year for distribution to 
County employees. 
 
An employee must work, use vacation, sick or compensatory leave the day before and the day after in order to 
receive holiday pay with the exception of law enforcement. (Revised February 5, 2007) 
 
The number of holiday hours earned by employees shall be determined in accordance with the formula set forth in 
Section 15 of this article but not to exceed 8 hours of holiday pay for employees and 8.4 hours for law enforcement 
officers. (Revised 8/3/09) 
 
Departments which have staff working during holidays may designate which days of the week are to be observed 
using the actual legal holidays when appropriate. 

 
Section 3. Holidays: Effect on Other Types of Leave 
 
Regular holidays which occur during a vacation, sick or other leave period of any employee shall not be considered 
as vacation, sick, or other leave. 

  
Section 4. Holidays: Compensation When Work is Required 
 
Essential regular full time public works employees required to perform work on regularly scheduled holidays will be 
paid eight (8) hours of holiday pay on top of their base pay for hours actually worked on a holiday and essential 
regular full time law enforcement officers will be paid eight point four (8.4) hours of holiday pay on top of their base 
pay. (Revised 8/3/09) 
 

Section 5. Vacation Leave 
 
Vacation leave may be used for rest and relaxation, school appointments, medical appointments, and other personal 
needs.  Any compensatory time earned by nonexempt employees must be used prior to using vacation time. 

 
Section 6. Vacation Leave: Use by Probationary Employees 
 
Employees serving a probationary period following initial employment may accumulate vacation leave but shall not 
be permitted to take vacation leave during the probationary period. Employees shall be allowed to take accumulated 
vacation leave after six months of service. 

Page 116 of 154



 

Page | 27  
 

 
 

Section 7. Vacation Leave: Accrual Rate 
 
Each full and part-time employee of the County shall earn vacation at the following schedule, prorated by the regular 
number of hours in the workweek:  (Approved 7/1/04) 
 
Years of Service  Hours Granted  Hours Granted Days Granted 
      Each Month      Each Year    Each Year 
 
Less than 2 years  7 hrs. 50 min.   94   11 3/4 
2 but less than 5 years 9 hrs. 10 min.   110   13 3/4  
5 but less than 10 years 11 hrs. 10 min.   134   16 3/4 
10 but less than 15 years 13 hrs. 10 min.   158   19 3/4  
15 but less than 20 years 15 hrs. 10 min.   182   22 3/4 
20 years or more  17 hrs. 10 min.   206   25 3/4   

        
Section 8. Vacation Leave: Maximum Accumulation 
 
Vacation leave may be accumulated without any applicable maximum until December 31 of each year. Effective the 
last payroll in the calendar year, any employee with more than 30 days (240 hours) of accumulated leave shall have 
the excess accumulation removed so that only 30 days (240 hours) are carried forward to January 1 of the next 
calendar year. One half of Any excess vacation leave as of December 31 may be transferred to an employee's sick 
leave account Employees with ten or more years of service to the County may have the entire excess amount 
converted to sick leave provided that the employee has taken a minimum of five days  40 hours of vacation during 
the calendar year.  Amended 7/1/04, Revised February 5, 2007 

 
Because the number of hours in employee work weeks vary, the number of hours in 30 days varies.  See Section 15 
of this Article for formula to calculate the number of hours in 30 days. 
 
Employees are cautioned not to retain excess accumulated vacation leave until late in the year. Because of the 
necessity to keep all functions in operation, large numbers of employees cannot be granted vacation leave at any 
one time. If an employee has excess leave accumulation during the latter part of the year and is unable to take such 
leave because of staffing demands, the employee shall receive no special consideration either in having vacation 
leave scheduled or in receiving any exception to the maximum accumulation. 
 
New employees may be credited up to five days of earned vacation leave upon date of hire if the immediate previous 
employer is a city or county and if the immediate previous employer provides written verification to the county 
manager that the employee an equal number or more days of vacation leave remaining on the date of termination. 
 

Section 9. Vacation Leave: Manner of Taking 
 
Employees shall be granted the use of earned vacation leave upon request in advance at those times designated by 
the Department Head which will least obstruct normal operations of the County. Earned vacation leave may be taken 
when requested 24 hours in advance at those times designated by the Department Head which will least obstruct 
normal operations of the County. Under Emergency Circumstances a Department Head at his/her discretion may 
authorize leave requests without 24 hour notice. Department heads are responsible for insuring that approved 
vacation leave does not hinder the effectiveness of service delivery. Vacation leave will be taken in quarter two 
quarter hour units. (Revised 2/5/07, Effective 7/1/07 Revision March 2012)

Page 117 of 154



 

Page | 28  
 

Section 10. Vacation Leave: Payment upon Separation 
 
An employee who has successfully completed six months of the probationary period will normally be paid for 
accumulated annual leave upon separation subject to the 30-day maximum, provided notice is given to the 
supervisor at least two weeks in advance of the effective date of resignation. Any employee failing to give the notice 
required by this section shall forfeit payment for accumulated leave. The notice requirement may be waived by the 
County Manager when deemed to be in the best interest of the County. (Revised 6/15/15) 
 
Employees who are involuntarily separated shall receive payment for accumulated annual leave subject to the 30-
day maximum. 

 

Section 11. Vacation Leave: Payment upon Death 
 
The estate of an employee who dies while employed by the County shall be entitled to payment of all the 
accumulated vacation leave credited to the employee's account not to exceed the maximums established in Section 
8 of this Article. 
 

Section 12. Sick Leave 
 

Sick leave with pay is not a right which an employee may demand, but a privilege granted for the benefit of an 
employee when sick.   
 
Sick leave may be granted to an employee absent from work for any of the following reasons: sickness, bodily injury, 
required physical or dental examinations or treatment, or exposure to a contagious disease, when continuing work 
might jeopardize the health of others. 
 
Sick leave may be used when an employee must care for a member of his or her immediate family who is ill, but may 
not be used to care for healthy children when the regular care giver is sick.  
 
Sick leave may also be used for death in the employee's immediate family, but may not exceed three days for any 
one occurrence, except by special permission of the Department or County Manager.  
 
Sick leave may also be used to supplement Workers' Compensation Disability Leave both during the waiting period 
before Workers' Compensation benefits begin, and afterward to supplement the remaining salary, except that 
employees may not exceed their regular salary amount using this provision. (Revised May 7, 2007) 
 
"Immediate family" shall be defined as spouse, parent, guardian, children, sister, brother, grandparents, 
grandchildren plus the various combinations of half, step, in-law, and adopted relationships that can be derived from 
those named.   
 
Notification of the desire to take sick leave should be submitted to the employee's supervisor prior to  
the leave or not later than two hours after the beginning of the scheduled workday. Failure to do so appropriately may 
result in disciplinary action. 
 
In order to facilitate the recruitment of qualified persons with appropriate public sector experience, the County 
Manager may authorize the carry-over of all or a portion of the unused sick leave that has been certified as 
accumulated during employment with a past state or local government employer. 
 

 
 

Page 118 of 154



 

Page | 29  
 

Section 13. Sick Leave: Accrual Rate and Accumulation 
 
Sick leave shall accrue at a rate of one day per month of service or twelve days per year. Sick leave for full-time and 
part-time employees working other than the basic work schedule shall be prorated as described in this Article. Sick 
leave will be cumulative for an indefinite period of time and may be converted upon retirement for service credit 
consistent with the provisions of the North Carolina Local Government Employees' Retirement System. 
 
All sick leave accumulated by an employee shall end and terminate without compensation when the employee 
resigns or is separated from the County, except as stated for employees retiring or terminated due to reduction in 
force.  

 
Section 14. Sick Leave: Medical Certification 
 
The employee’s supervisor or Department Head may require a physician's certificate stating the nature of the 
employee or immediate family member's illness and the employee's capacity to resume duties, for each occasion on 
which an employee uses sick leave or whenever the supervisor observes a "pattern of absenteeism." The employee 
may be required to submit to such medical examination or inquiry as the Department Head deems desirable. The 
Department Head shall be responsible for the application of this provision to the end that: 
 
1) Employees shall not be on duty when they might endanger their health or the health of other employees; 

and 
 
2) There will be no abuse of leave privileges. 
 
When an employee goes on sick leave he/she must notify his/her Department Head or supervisor immediately. 
Notification should be within 30 minutes after the beginning of the scheduled work day. Failure to do so may result in 
denial of such leave pay. The employee should also let the supervisor know when he/she expects to return to work.  
 
An employee who is on sick leave for a period of three days or longer shall be required to provide a note from a 
medical doctor.  
 
Claiming sick leave under false pretense to obtain a day off with pay shall subject the employee to disciplinary action. 
 

Section 15. Leave Pro-Rated 
 
Holiday, annual, and sick leave earned by full-time and part-time employees with fewer or more hours than the basic 
work week shall be determined by the following formula: 
 
1) The number of hours worked by such employees shall be divided by the number of hours in the basic work 

week (usually 40 hours). 
 
2) The proportion obtained in step 1 shall be multiplied by the number of hours of leave earned annually by 

employees working the basic work week. 
 
3) The number of hours in step 2 divided by 12 shall be the number of hours of leave earned monthly by the 

employees concerned. 
 
 

 
 

Page 119 of 154



 

Page | 30  
 

Section 16. Leave Without Pay 
 
A full or part-time employee may be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period of up to six months by the 
County Manager. The leave shall be used for reasons of personal disability after both sick leave and desired amount 
of annual leave have been exhausted, sickness or disability of immediate family members, continuation of education, 
special work that will permit the County to benefit by the experience gained or the work performed, or for other 
reasons deemed justified by the County Manager. 
 
The employee shall apply in writing to the Department Head for leave. The employee is obligated to return to duty 
within or at the end of the time determined appropriate by the County Manager. Upon returning to duty after being on 
leave without pay, the employee shall be entitled to return to the same position held at the time leave was granted or 
to one of like classification, seniority, and pay. If the employee decides not to return to work, the Department Head 
shall be notified immediately. Failure to report at the expiration of a leave of absence, unless an extension has been 
requested, shall be considered a resignation. 
 

Section 17. Family Medical Leave 
 
The County will grant up to 12 weeks of family and medical leave during any 12-month period beginning on the date 
leave is first used to eligible employees in accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA). 
Eligible employees must have regular status and must have been employed at least twelve months and worked at 
least 1,250 hours during the previous twelve months. The leave may be paid (coordinated with the County's Vacation 
and Sick Leave policies), unpaid, or a combination of paid and unpaid. Additional time away from the job beyond the 
12-week period may be approved in accordance with the County's Leave Without Pay policy. Employees may be 
required to exhaust eligible paid leave before going on a leave without pay status. 
 
FMLA leave may be taken for the following reasons:  
(1) to care for the employee's child after birth or placement for adoption or foster care;  
 
(2) to care for the employee's spouse, child or parent who has a serious health condition; or  
 
(3) for a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee's job.  
 
A serious health condition is defined as a condition which requires inpatient care at a hospital, hospice, or residential 
medical care facility, or a condition which requires continuing care by a licensed health care provider. This policy 
covers illness of a serious and long-term nature resulting in recurring or lengthy absences. Generally, a chronic or 
long term health condition which results in a period of incapacity for more than three days would be considered a 
serious health condition. 
 
If a husband and wife both work for the County and each wishes to take leave for the birth of a child, adoption or 
placement of a child in foster care, or to care for a parent (not parent in-law) with a serious health condition, the 
husband and wife together may only take a total of 12 weeks leave under FMLA. 
 
An employee taking leave for the birth of a child may use paid sick leave for the period of actual disability, based on 
medical certification. The employee may then use paid vacation for the remainder of the 12-week period. 
 
The request for the use of leave must be made in writing by the employee and approved by the department head or 
County Manager.  The County may also designate qualified leave as FMLA Leave by notifying the employee of such 
action. 
 
An employee who takes leave under this policy will return to the same job or a job with equivalent status, pay, 

Page 120 of 154



 

Page | 31  
 

benefits, and other employment terms. The position will be the same or one which entails substantially equivalent 
skill, effort, responsibility, and authority. 
 
In order to qualify for leave under this law, the County requires medical certification. This statement from the 
employee's or the family member's physician should include the date when the condition began, its expected 
duration, diagnosis, and brief statement of treatment. For the employee's own health condition, it should state that 
the employee is unable to perform the essential functions of his/her position. For a seriously ill family member, the 
certification must include a statement that the patient requires assistance and the employee's presence would be 
beneficial or desirable.  
 
This certification should be furnished at least 30 days prior to the needed leave unless the employee's or family 
member's condition is a sudden one. The certification should be furnished as soon as possible (no longer than 15 
days from the date of the employee's request). The certification and request must be made to the department head 
and filed with the Human Resources Director. 
 
The employee is expected to return to work at the end of the time frame stated in the medical certification, unless 
he/she has requested additional time in writing under the County's Leave Without Pay policy 
 

Section 18. Family Medical Leave and Leave Without Pay: Retention and Continuation of 
Benefits 

 
When an employee is on leave under FMLA, the County will continue the employee's health benefits during the leave 
period at the same level and under the same conditions as if the employee had continued to work. If an employee 
chooses not to return to work for reasons other than a continued serious health condition, the County will require the 
reimbursement of the amount paid for the employee's health insurance premiums during the FMLA leave period. 
 
Other insurance and payroll deductions are the responsibility of the employee and the employee must make those 
payments for continued coverage of that benefit. 
 
An employee shall retain all unused vacation and sick leave while on Leave Without Pay.  An employee ceases to 
earn leave credits on the date leave without pay begins.  The employee may continue to be eligible for benefits under 
the County’s Group insurance plans at his or her own expense, subject to any regulation adopted by the County 
Commissioners and the regulations of the insurance carrier. 
 

Section 19. Workers' Compensation Leave 
 
An employee absent from duty because of sickness or disability covered by the North Carolina Workers' 
Compensation Act may elect to use accrued sick leave or vacation during the first waiting period. The employee may 
also elect to supplement workers' compensation payments after they begin provided that the combination of leave 
supplement and workers' compensation payments does not exceed normal compensation. An employee on workers' 
compensation leave may be permitted to continue to be eligible for benefits under the County's group insurance 
plans. If the injury results in additional time away from work, the employee will be placed on worker’s compensation 
leave and receive the worker’s compensation weekly after the required waiting period. The employee may elect to 
take sick or vacation during the required waiting period, or may elect to go on worker’s compensation leave with no 
pay for the required waiting period. Once an employee begins drawing worker’s compensation pay, the employee will 
not be allowed to receive pay for vacation or sick leave in addition to worker’s compensation payments. Life 
insurance and health benefits already provided by Camden County to an employee will continue to be provided 
during the period of worker’s compensation leave. Upon reinstatement, an employee’s salary will be computed on the 
basis of the last salary earned plus any increment or other salary increase to which the employee would have been 
entitled during the disability covered by worker’s compensation. (Revised February 5, 2007) 

Page 121 of 154



 

Page | 32  
 

 

Section 20. Military Leave 
 
Regular employees who are members of an Armed Forces Reserve organization or National Guard shall be granted 
ten workdays per year for military leave without pay. On rare occasions due to annual training being scheduled on a 
federal fiscal year basis, an employee may be required to attend two periods of training in one calendar year. For this 
purpose only, an employee shall be granted an additional ten days of military leave during the same calendar year. If 
the compensation received while on military leave is less than the salary that would have been earned during this 
same period as a County employee, the employee shall receive partial compensation equal to the difference in the 
base salary earned during this same period as a County employee. The effect will be to maintain the employee's 
salary at the normal level during this period.  If such duty is required beyond these ten workdays, the employee shall 
be eligible to take accumulated vacation leave or be placed in a leave without pay status, and the provisions of that 
leave shall apply. While taking military leave without pay or with partial pay, the employee's leave credits and other 
benefits shall continue to accrue as if the employee physically remained with the County during this period. 
Employees who are eligible for military leave have all job rights specified by the Vietnam Veterans Readjustment Act, 
including members of the National Guard or a reserve unit. Employees who volunteer for additional duty may use 
vacation, compensatory time or leave without pay. If there is a compensatory balance, it should be used first for 
nonexempt employees. 
 

Section 21. Reinstatement Following Military Service. 
 
An employee called to extended active duty with the United States military forces, who does not volunteer for service 
beyond the period for which called, shall be reinstated with full benefits provided the employee: 
 
1) Applies for reinstatement within ninety days after the release from military service; and 
 
2) Is able to perform the duties of the former position or similar position; or 
 
3) Is unable to perform the duties of the former position or a similar position due to disability sustained as a 

result of military service, but is able to perform the duties of another position in the service of the County. In 
this case the employee shall be employed in such other position as will provide the nearest approximation of 
the seniority, status, and pay which the employee otherwise would have been provided, if available. 

 

Section 22. Civil Leave 
 

(A) A County employee called for jury duty or as a court witness for the federal or state governments, or a 
subdivision thereof, shall receive leave with pay for such duty during the required absence without charge to 
accumulated leave. The employee may keep fees and travel allowances received for jury or witness duty in 
addition to regular compensation; except, that employees must turn over to the County any witness fees 
awarded by that court for court appearances in connection with official duties. Employees must turn over to 
the County any travel allowance awarded by that court for court appearances when traveling in a county 
vehicle or transportation wholly or partially provided at county expense.  While on civil leave, benefits and 
leave shall accrue as though on regular duty. 

(B) With the discretionary approval of their respective Department Head or direct supervisor, volunteers 
involved in fire or rescue organizations may be allowed to take appropriate time to respond to emergency 
calls, but shall return to work as quickly as possible. Use of County vehicles is prohibited in responding to 
such calls unless circumstances surrounding the response would make it reasonable to do so. All Volunteer 
Fire/Rescue Civil Leave responses should be thoroughly documented on a Camden County Civil Leave 
Form. One copy should be submitted to the individual’s Department Head and one copy should be 
submitted to the Safety Committee within 24 hours of the Civil Leave.” (Effective January 3, 2012) 

Page 122 of 154



 

Page | 33  
 

(C) All instances of Civil Leave as defined in Subsections A and B should be accurately annotated as such on 
individual time sheets. (Effective January 3, 2012) 

 

Section 23. Parental School Leave 
 
A County employee who is a parent, guardian, or person standing in loco parentis (in place of the parent) may take 
up to four hours of unpaid leave annually to involve him or herself in school activities of his or her child(ren). This 
leave is subject to the three following conditions: 
 
1) The leave must be taken at a time mutually agreed upon by the employee and the County; 
 
2) The County may require the employee to request the leave in writing at least 48 hours prior to the time of 

the desired leave; and 
 
3) The County may require written verification from the child’s school that the employee was involved at the 

school during the leave time. 
 
Paid leave (vacation time) taken by an employee to attend to school activities of his or her child shall count toward 
the fulfillment of this provision by the County. 
 

Section 24. Adverse Weather Conditions 
 
County offices and departments shall remain open for the full scheduled work day unless authorization for early closing or other 
deviation is received from the County Manager or his designate. Employees scheduled to work during an authorized official 
closing will be given full credit for all their work hours scheduled but missed during the period covered by the authorized official 
closing or other deviation.  Employees who leave work before an official early closing time, as well as those employees who 
report to work late or who do not report to work at all, will be required to use earned vacation for this unauthorized missed time.  
Also, any employee who has leave time approved prior to the issuance of an authorized early closing or other deviation will be 
required to honor the approved leave time.  
 
The County Manager or his designate may authorize the closing or deviation for all or part of the County offices.  Any closing or 
deviation shall be applicable uniformly to all County offices unless otherwise specified in the announcement from the County 
Manager or his designate.  The County Manager or his designate may authorize closings or deviations different for one office or 
department than for other offices or departments. Depending on the nature of the adverse weather, the County Manager may 
designate certain County employee’s essential and request that they report to work as directed. Those employees will be issued 
compensatory time at a rate of hour for hour. Modified work schedules do not apply to public safety employees, i.e. Sheriff’s 
Department. 

 
 

Section 25 – Shared Leave (Approved 7/1/04) 
 
Voluntary Shared Leave 
 
A.  PURPOSE 
 
There are occurrences brought about by serious and prolonged medical conditions that cause employees to exhaust 
all available leave, and therefore, be placed on leave without pay.  Such employees forced to go on leave without pay 
could be without income during one of the most critical points in their lives.  It is recognized that fellow employees 
may wish to voluntarily donate some of their accumulated vacation leave so as to provide assistance to other 
Camden County employees.  This program intends to provide an opportunity for employees to assist another affected 
by a medical condition that requires absence from work for a prolonged period of time resulting in possible loss of 
income due to lack of accumulated leave. 

Page 123 of 154



 

Page | 34  
 

 
B.  POLICY 
 
In cases of prolonged medical condition, an employee may apply or be nominated to become a recipient of leave 
transferred from the vacation leave accounts of unrelated employees working for Camden County or from the sick or 
vacation account of an immediate family member who works for Camden County.  For purposes of this program, 
medical condition means the medical condition of an employee or their spouse, parents, children or other 
dependents, including step and in-law relationships, that is likely to require an employee’s absence from duty for a 
prolonged period, generally considered to be at least twenty (20) consecutive workdays.  If an employee has had 
previous random absences for the same condition that has caused excessive absences, or if the employee has had a 
previous, but different, prolonged medical condition within the last twelve months, the County may make an exception 
to the 20-day period. 
 
C.  GENERAL GUIDELINES 
 
1.  Establishment of a leave “bank” for use by unnamed employees is expressly prohibited.  Leave must be donated 
on a one-to-one personal basis. 
 
2.  This Policy does not apply to employees on worker’s compensation leave. 
 
3.  Individual leave records are confidential and only individual employees may reveal their donation or receipt of 
leave.  The employee donating leave must sign a release form and cannot receive remuneration for leave donated.  
All donations must be done on a voluntary basis.  Solicitation on the part of Department Heads or supervisors is 
prohibited.  No employee shall directly or indirectly intimidate, threaten or coerce any other employee for the purpose 
of interfering with any right an employee may have in donating, receiving or using annual leave under this program.  
Such action by any employee will result in disciplinary action up to an including dismissal on the basis of personal 
conduct. 
 
4.  The Privacy Act makes medical information confidential; therefore, prior to making the employee’s status public 
for the purpose of receiving shared leave, the employee must sign a release to allow the status to be known. 
 
5.  A committee composed of the Personnel Technician, the Department Head of the recipient employee, and one 
other randomly selected Department Head will make the final decision concerning eligibility to participate in the 
program.  Participation in this program shall be based on the applicant’s and donor’s past compliance with leave 
rules. 
 
D.  ELIGIBILITY 7 APPLICATION 
 
1.  Applicant must be a regular, full or part-time employee who has completed his/her applicable introductory period. 
 
2.  AT the time of the request, applicant must have exhausted all sick, annual and compensatory leave; all leave 
balances must be zero. 
 
3.  Application should include name, social security number, department name, position title and a doctor’s statement 
describing the medical condition and estimated length of time needed to participate in the program. 
 
4.  Applicant shall apply to the Department Head who shall forward the application to the Personnel Technician.  After 
randomly selecting a third member for the review committee, the three-member committee will meet to review the 
merits of the request as well as the employee’s past leave history and will make a decision concerning the applicant’s 
eligibility to participate in the program.  An employee may not file a grievance nor an employee appeal if his/her 
request to receive or to donate leave is denied. 

Page 124 of 154



 

Page | 35  
 

 
E.  RECIPIENT GUIDELINES 
 
1.  Participation in this program is limited to 1,040 hours (prorated if part-time), either continuously or, if for the same 
condition, on a recurring basis.  The County Manager may, however, grant employee continuation in the program, 
month by month, for a maximum of 2,080 hours if the employee would otherwise have been granted leave without 
pay. 
 
2.  Subject to the maximum of 1,040 hours, the number of hours leave n employee can receive is limited to the 
projected recovery or treatment period.  All donated leave will be credited to the recipient’s sick leave account. 
 
3.  At the expiration of the medical condition any unused leave in the recipient’s donated leave account shall be 
treated as follows: 
 
a.  The recipient’s sick leave account balance shall be limited to a total of forty (40) hours. 
 
b.  Any additional unused donated leave will be returned to the donor(s) on a pro rata basis and credited to the leave 
account from which it was donated. 
 
4.  If a recipient separates due to resignation, death or retirement from Camden County, his/her participation in the 
program will end.  Donated leave shall be returned to the donor(s) on a pro rata basis. 
 
F.  DONOR GUIDELINES 
 
1.  A non-family member donor may contribute only vacation leave to another employee. 
 
2.  A family member who is a County employee may contribute vacation or sick leave to another immediate family 
member who is a County employee.  Immediate family is defined as spouse, parents, children, brother, sister, 
grandparents and grandchildren, great grandparents and great grandchildren.  Also included are the step, half and in-
law relationships. 
 
3.  The minimum amount to be donated is four (4) hours. 
 
4.  An employee family member donating sick leave to a qualified family under this program may donate up to a 
maximum of 1,040 hours but may not reduce their own sick leave balance below forty (40) hours. 
 
5.  The maximum amount of vacation leave allowed to be donated by one individual can be no more than the amount 
he/she could earn in one year; however, the amount donated may not reduce the donor’s vacation leave balance 
below one-half of the amount he/she could earn in one year. 
 
6.  All donations must be in writing and must be signed by the donating employee.  The employee receiving the leave 
must be named and the amount and type of leave donated must be specified. 
 
7.  Once a donation is made it cannot be retracted by the donor. 

Page 125 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.G 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Ordinance No. 2015-06-01  

  14
th

 Supplement  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
Ordinance adopting supplement number 14 to the Camden County Code of 

Ordinances from American Legal 

   

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve Request  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 126 of 154



ORDINANCE No. 2015-06-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENT TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

FOR CAMDEN COUNTY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 

WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, has completed the 14th 

supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the Political Subdivision, which supplement contains all 

ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted since the prior supplement to the Code of 

Ordinances of this Political Subdivision; and 

 

WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation has recommended the revision or addition of certain 

sections of the Code of Ordinances which are based on or make reference to sections of the NC code; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Legislative Authority to accept these updated sections in accordance with 

the changes of the law of the State of NC: and 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide for the usual daily operation of the municipality and for the 

immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and general welfare of the municipality that 

this ordinance take effect at an early date; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY OF THE POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISION OF CAMDEN COUNTY: 

 

Section 1 That the 14th supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the Political Subdivision as 

submitted by American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, and as 

attached hereto, be and the same is hereby adopted by reference as if set out in its 

entirety. 

 

Section 2  Such supplement shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and approval by 

the Legislative Authority and the Clerk of the Political Subdivision is hereby authorized 

and ordered to insert such supplement into the copy of the Code of Ordinances kept on 

file in the Office of the Clerk. 

 

Section 3  This ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate 

preservation of the peace, health, safety and general welfare of the people of this 

municipality, and shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Legislative Authority of the Political Subdivision on this 15th day of June, 

2015. 

Page 127 of 154



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number: 7.H 

     

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   Findings/Planning Board Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2015-
06-03 - Proposed amendments to 
Chapter 151 (Unified Development 
Ordinance) of the Camden County Code  

                       Ordinances 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Proposed amendments to additional Specific Standards (Article 151.347) 
for Solar Farms and amendments to Floodplain Management language 
(Article 151.380 thru 151.387) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Set Public Hearing for Monday, July 6, 2015 

 

 

  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

T. White        ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

T. White         ____ 
C. Riggs       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

Page 128 of 154



 1 

Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 2 
 3 

An Ordinance 4 
Amending the Camden County 5 

Code of Ordinances 6 
   7 

Camden County, North Carolina 8 
 9 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 10 
follows: 11 

 12 
Article I: Purpose 13 
 14 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 15 
Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 16 
Commissioners on December 15, 1997, and subsequently amended and as otherwise 17 
incorporated into the Camden County Code. 18 
  19 

Article II. Construction 20 
 21 

For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 22 
additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 23 
considered deletions to existing language.  New language of proposed ordinance shall be 24 
shown in italics (italics) and underlined. 25 
 26 

Article III.  Amend Chapter 151 as amended of the Camden County Code which shall 27 
read as follows: 28 

 29 
  CHAPTER 151:  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 30 
 31 
§ 151.347 SPECIFIC STANDARDS. 32 
 33 
(V) The following standards shall apply to all solar farms located in Camden County: 34 

 35 
  (1) The minimum lot size for all solar farms shall be five acres. 36 
 37 

  (2) All structures shall meet the minimum setback for the zoning in which located. 38 
 39 
  (3) There shall be 50 foot buffer from routine view from public rights of way or 40 
adjacent residentially zoned property. 41 

 42 
  (4) Solar power electric generation structures shall not exceed a height of 25 feet. 43 
 44 
  (5) The solar farm shall conform to the NAICS 22119 description of a ground mounted 45 
solar powered energy system. 46 
 47 

Page 129 of 154



            (6)  The solar farm shall have 12 months to complete decommissioning of the solar 48 

facility if no electricity is generated for a continuous period of 12 months.  For purposes of this 49 
section, this 12-month period shall not include delay resulting from force majeure. 50 
 51 
            (7)  Decommissioning shall include removal of solar panels, buildings, cabling, electrical 52 
components, roads, and any other associated facilities down to 36 inches below grade. 53 
 54 
            (8)  Applicant shall provide prior to approval of building permits, an irrevocable letter of 55 
credit in favor of the county in an amount equal to the estimated removal cost of the solar 56 
facility, less the salvage value of the equipment, which shall be issued by a federally chartered 57 
bank with a branch office in northeastern North Carolina at which the letter of credit may be 58 
drawn and paid in full in immediately available funds in the event the solar facility owner fails to 59 
decommission the solar facility pursuant to the requirements of this section. 60 

 61 
            (9)  Disturbed earth shall be graded and re-seeded, unless the landowner requests in 62 
writing that the access roads or other land surface areas not be restored. 63 
 64 
  (6 10) Solar farms located within FEMA’s 100 year flood shall elevate all electrical 65 
connections one foot above the base flood elevation (BFE). 66 
 67 
  (7 11) All collectors shall be surrounded by a lockable minimum height six foot 68 
fence. 69 

 70 
  71 
§ 151.380 FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION. 72 
 73 

§ 151.382 GENERAL PROVISIONS. 74 
 75 
 (A) Lands to which this subchapter applies.  This subchapter shall apply to all special flood 76 
hazard areas within the county. 77 
 78 
 (B) Basis for establishing the special flood hazard areas.  The special flood hazard areas 79 
are those identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or produced under 80 

the Cooperating Technical State (CTS) agreement between the State of North Carolina and 81 
FEMA in its Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM) or Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and its 82 
accompanying flood maps such as the Flood Insurance Rate Map(s) (FIRM) and/or the Flood 83 
Boundary Floodway Map(s) (FBFM), for Camden County dated October 5, 2004, which, with 84 

accompanying supporting data, and any revision thereto, including letters of map amendment or 85 
revision, are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this subchapter.  The special flood 86 
hazard areas also include those defined through standard engineering analysis for private 87 

developments or by governmental agencies, but which have not yet been incorporated in the 88 
FIRM.  This includes, but is not limited to: 89 
 90 
  (1) Detailed flood data generated as a requirement of § 151.383 of this subchapter; 91 
 92 
  (2) Preliminary FIRMs where more stringent than the effective FIRM; or  93 

Page 130 of 154



 94 

  (3) Post-disaster flood recovery maps. 95 
 96 
 (C) Establishment of Floodplain Development Permit.  A Floodplain Development Permit 97 
shall be required in conformance with the provisions of this subchapter prior to the 98 
commencement of any development activities within special flood hazard areas as determined in 99 
§ 151.382(B). 100 
  101 
 102 

§ 151.384 GENERAL STANDARDS. 103 
 104 
 (B) Specific standards.  In all Special Flood Hazard Areas where Base Flood Elevation 105 
(BFE) data has been provided, as set forth in § 151.382(B), or § 151.383, the following 106 

provisions are required: 107 
 108 
  (1) Residential construction.  New construction or substantial improvement of any 109 
residential structure (including manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, including 110 
basement, elevated no lower than the regulatory flood protection elevation, as defined in § 111 
151.600, Definitions. 112 
 113 
  (2) Non-residential construction.  New construction or substantial improvement of any 114 
commercial, or industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the reference level, 115 
including basement, elevated no lower than the regulatory flood protection elevation.  Structures 116 
located in A and AE Zones may be floodproofed to the regulatory flood protection elevation in 117 
lieu of elevation provided that all areas of the structure below the required flood protection 118 

elevation are watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, using 119 
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 120 
the effect of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the 121 
standards of this subsection are satisfied.  Such certification shall be provided to the official as 122 
set forth in § 151.383(B)(3). 123 
 124 
  (3) Manufactured homes. 125 
 126 

   (a) New or replacement manufactured homes shall be elevated so that the 127 
reference level of the manufactured home is no lower than the regulatory flood protection 128 
elevation, as defined in § 151.600, Definitions. 129 
 130 

   (b) Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored 131 
foundation to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement in accordance with the State of 132 
North Carolina Regulations for Manufactured/Mobile Homes, 1995 Edition, and any revision 133 

thereto adopted by the Commissioner of Insurance pursuant to G.S. § 143-143.15 or a certified 134 
engineered foundation. Additionally, when the elevation would be met by an elevation of the 135 
chassis 36 inches or less above the grade at the site, the chassis shall be supported by reinforced 136 
piers or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength. When the elevation of the 137 
chassis is above 36 inches in height, an engineering certification is required. 138 
 139 

Page 131 of 154



   (c) All foundation enclosures or skirting shall be in accordance with § 140 

151.383(B)(4). 141 
 142 
   (d) An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all residents of all 143 
new, substantially improved or substantially damaged manufactured home parks or subdivisions 144 
located within flood prone areas. This plan shall be filed with and approved by the Floodplain 145 
Administrator and the local emergency management coordinator. 146 
 147 
  (4) Elevated buildings.  Enclosed areas, of new construction or substantially improved 148 
structures, which are below the regulatory flood protection. 149 
 150 
   (a) Shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but shall only be designed 151 
and used for parking of vehicles, building access, or limited storage of maintenance equipment 152 

used in connection with the premises.  Access to the enclosed area shall be the minimum 153 
necessary to allow for parking of vehicles (garage door) or limited storage of maintenance 154 
equipment (standard exterior door), or entry to the living area (stairway or elevator). The interior 155 
portion of such enclosed area shall not be partitioned or finished into separate rooms, except to 156 
enclose storage areas; 157 
 158 
   (b) Shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials below the regulatory 159 
flood protection elevation; 160 
 161 
   (c) Shall include measures to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on 162 
exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters.  To meet this requirement, the 163 
foundation must either be certified by a professional engineer or architect or meet the following 164 

minimum design criteria: 165 
 166 
    1. Provide a minimum of two openings on different sides of each enclosed 167 
area subject to flooding; 168 
 169 
    2. The total net area of all openings must be at least one square inch for each 170 
square foot of each enclosed area subject to flooding; 171 
 172 

    3. If a building has more than one enclosed area, each area must have 173 
openings on exterior walls to allow floodwater to enter directly; 174 
 175 
    4. The bottom of all required openings shall be no higher than one foot above 176 

the adjacent grade; 177 
 178 
    5. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other opening 179 

coverings or devices, provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions. 180 
 181 
    6. Foundation enclosures: 182 
 183 
     a. Made of vinyl or other flexible skirting are not considered an 184 
enclosure for regulatory purposes, and, therefore, does not require openings. 185 

Page 132 of 154



 186 

     b. Made of masonry or wood underpinning, regardless of structural 187 
status, are considered an enclosure and therefore require openings as outlined above. 188 
 189 
  (5) Additions/improvements. 190 
 191 
   (a) Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures whereas the addition 192 
and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure: 193 
 194 
    1. Are not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements 195 
must be designed to minimize flood damages and must not be any more non-conforming than the 196 
existing structure. 197 
 198 

    2. Are a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition 199 
and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction. 200 
 201 
   (b) Additions to post-FIRM structures with no modifications to the existing 202 
structure shall require only the addition to comply with the standards for new construction. 203 
 204 
   (c) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures whereas the addition 205 
and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure: 206 
 207 
    1. Are not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements only 208 
must comply with the standards for new construction. 209 
 210 

    2. Are a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition 211 
and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction. 212 
 213 
   (d) Where a fire wall or independent perimeter load-bearing wall is provided 214 
between the addition and the existing building, the addition(s) shall be considered a separate 215 
building and only the addition must comply with the standards for new construction. 216 
 217 
  (6) Recreational vehicles.  Recreational vehicles placed on sites within a Special Flood 218 

Hazard Area shall either: 219 
 220 
   (a) Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready 221 
for highway use (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking 222 

system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and has no permanently 223 
attached additions); or 224 
 225 

   (b) Meet all the requirements for new construction, including anchoring and 226 
elevation requirements of § 151.383(B) and § 151.384(A) and (B)(3). 227 
 228 
  (7) Temporary non-residential structures.  Prior to the issuance of a floodplain 229 
development permit for a temporary structure, applicants must submit to the Floodplain 230 
Administrator a plan for the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurricane, flash flood 231 

Page 133 of 154



or other type of flood warning notification.  The following information shall be submitted in 232 

writing to the Floodplain Administrator for review and written approval: 233 
 234 
   (a) A specified time period for which the temporary use will be permitted. Time 235 
specified should be minimal with total time on site not to exceed one year; 236 
 237 
   (b) The name, address, and phone number of the individual responsible for the 238 
removal of the temporary structure; 239 
 240 
   (c) The time frame prior to the event at which a structure will be removed (i. e. 241 
minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a hurricane or immediately upon flood warning 242 
notification); 243 
 244 

   (d) A copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with a trucking company to 245 
insure the availability of removal equipment when needed; and 246 
 247 
   (e) Designation, accompanied by documentation of a location outside the Special 248 
Flood Hazard Area, to which the temporary structure will be moved. 249 
 250 
  (8) Accessory structures.  When accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc.) are 251 
to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met: 252 
 253 
   (a) Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including work, 254 
sleeping, living, cooking or restroom areas); 255 
 256 

   (b) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential; 257 

 258 
   (c) Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as 259 
to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters; 260 
 261 
   (d) Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with this 262 
subchapter or by bolting the building to a concrete slab or by over the top ties.  When bolting to a 263 
concrete slab, one-half inch bolts six feet on center with a minimum of two per side shall be 264 

required.  If over the top ties are used a minimum of two ties with a force adequate to secure the 265 
building is required; and 266 
 267 
   (e) All service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment shall be installed 268 

in accordance with § 151.384(A)(4); and 269 
 270 
   (f) Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be provided 271 

below regulatory flood protection elevation in conformance with § 151.384(B)(4)(a). 272 
 273 
   (g) An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150  1000  square feet that 274 
satisfies the criteria outlined above.  Structures less than 150 square feet that satisfy the criteria 275 
above does not require an elevation or floodproofing certificate.  Elevation or floodproofing 276 
certifications are required for all other accessory structures in accordance with §151.383(B)(3). 277 

Page 134 of 154



 278 

 279 

 Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this    of               , 2015. 280 

 281 
 282 
 283 
       County of Camden 284 
 285 
       _____________________________ 286 
       P. Michael McLain, Chairman 287 
       Board of Commissioners 288 
ATTEST: 289 

 290 
____________________________ 291 
Angie Wooten 292 
Acting Clerk to the Board 293 
 294 

Page 135 of 154



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.G 

 

Consent Agenda  

 

Meeting Date:   June 15
th

, 2015 

Attachments:    

Submitted By: Finance Dept. 
 

ITEM TITLE:   GovDeals – Bid Results 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

1998 Ford F-150 XL 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

FOR COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' APPROVAL 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 136 of 154



GovDeals Seller's Certificate: 42-0610150909-1989

GovDeals Seller's Certificate: 42-0610150909-1989

Congratulations, Camden County, NC has sold another item on the
GovDeals Auction Services.

BUYER (#263810)

Name: lewis edwards

Company: Double Creek LLC

Title To: Double Creek LLC

Phone: 336-403-3767

Email: double.creek@hotmail.com

Address: 478 Double Creek Rd

Dobson, NC 27017

SELLER (#1989)

Agency: Camden County, NC

Contact: Sandra Jones

Phone: 252-335-4691 ext. 260

Fax: 252-333-1603

Email: sjones@camdencountync.gov

Address: 330 US Highway 158 E
Camden, NC 27921-7525

ITEM INFORMATION FOR ASSET ID: 42

Item: 1998 Ford F-150 XL Req. Cab Short Bed 2WD ptoflSSfe^
g^ftfjfi

Pick Up
Location:

330 Us Hiqhwav 158 E, Camden. NC 27921-7525

Inventory ID: 0036 Account ID: 1989

Condition: See Description Quantity: 1 each

Make/Brand: Ford Model: F-150

VIN/Serial: 1FTZF1761WNC27716 Model Year: 1998

Meter: 183,950 Miles
Title

Restrictions:
No

Date Item Amount

06/10/2015 9:09 AM
1998 Ford F-150 XL Reg. Cab Short
Bed 2WD

$1,075.00

Tax None $0.00

Administrative Fee $80.62

Total $1,155.62

Payment Instructions:

Payment in full is due
Buyer's Certificate ar

not later than 5 business days from th<
d approval by the Board of County Cor

3 time and da

nmissioners.

te of the

Acceptable

https://www.govdeals.net/CertPopup.cfm?asset_id=42

Print - Close

6/10/2015

Page 137 of 154



GovDeals Seller's Certificate: 42-0610150909-1989

forms of payment are: U. S. Currency, Certified Cashiers Check, Money Order, or a
Company Check (with Bank Letter guaranteeing funds - mandatory) Checks shall be
made payable to: County of Camden

Removal Instructions:

Removal: All items must be removed within 10 business days from the time and date
of issuance of the Buyer's Certificate. The Buyer will make all arrangements and
perform all work necessary, including packing, loading and transportation of the
property.

Property may be removed by appointment only. Please contact Sandra Jones at 252-
338-6363 x108 or sjones@camdencountync.gov to schedule payment & removal. A
daily storage fee of $10.00 may be charged for any item not removed within the 10
business days allowed and stated on the Buyer's Certificate.

Special Instructions:

Camden County reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to withdraw from
sale any of the items listed.

The Camden County Board of Commissioners must approve sale of all items prior to
being released.

NOTICE: If you are the winning bidder and default by failing to adhere to this sellers
terms and conditions your account with GovDeals WILL BE LOCKED.

Guaranty Waiver. All property is offered for sale "AS IS, WHERE IS." (Seller) makes
no warranty, guaranty or representation of any kind, expressed or implied, as to the
merchantability or fitness for any purpose of the property offered for sale. Please note
that upon removal of the property, all sales are final.

Description Warranty. Seller warrants to the Buyer that the property offered for sale
will conform to its description. Any claim for misdescription must be made prior to
removal of the property. If Seller confirms that the property does not conform to the
description, Seller will keep the property and refund any money paid. The liability of
the seller shall not exceed the actual purchase price of the property.

Description:

1998 Ford F-150 XL Reg. Cab Short Bed 2WD REGULAR CAB PICKUP 2-DR, 4.6L
V8 SOHC 16 This 1998 Ford F150 has gray cloth interior, which is in fair condition.
The exterior is white with some dents, scratches and dings. It has a factory installed
AM/FM radio.

https://www.govdeals.net/CertPopup.cfm?asset_id=42 6/10/2015

Page 138 of 154



GovDeals Client Asset Server

Camden County, NC
Log Out

ONLINE V.:jGovDeals
A LIQUIDITY SERVICES MARKETPLACE

(index.cfm)

SandraJones (Logout.ctm) (https://oscar.govdeals.com/webim/client.php?
timeout in 59:52 locale=en&style=simplicity&group= 1)

Bid History
Auction Start Date: 05/21/2015 10:00 AM

Auction End Date: 06/10/2015 9:09 AM

Asset ID: 42

Userid Bid Date/Time Bid Amount

l"""*s 06/10/2015 9:05:28 AM

06/10/2015 9:05:28 AM

06/10/2015 9:01:13 AM

$1,075.00

$1,050.00

$1,025.00

$1,000.00

|*******s

|..«....g 06/10/2015 8:57:50 AM

06/10/2015 8:25:51 AM

06/10/2015 12:55:15 AM

06/09/2015 7:53:48 AM

06/09/2015 7:53:48 AM

$975.00

$950.00

$925.00

$900.00

$878.04

m****c

h n

j..........„...
**m 05/28/2015 8:07:36 AM $825.00

d"""*e 05/25/2015 2:55:07 AM S800.00

s********************* ***m 05/25/2015 2:55:07 AM $775.00

d****"*e 05/24/2015 8:52:43 AM $750.00

d*"**""1 05/23/2015 11:01:56 AM $725.00

05/23/2015 11:01:56 AM $700.00

05/22/2015 3:47:21 PM $625.00

05/22/2015 3:47:21 PM S600.00

d"*""e 05/21/2015 12:05:02 PM S525.00

05/21/2015 11:45:07 AM S500.00

For Support, contact your CSR John Miller (mailto:jmillef@govdeals.com) (919-971-6086)or call 1-800-613-0156(rom9 am - 6 pm ET or email Support
(mailto clientservices@govdeals.com).

AcctID: 1989-P17

https://www.govdeals.net/index.cfm?fa=Assets.BidHistory&asset_id:=42

sueMap (index.cfm?
fa=Main.SiteMap)

6/10/2015

Page 139 of 154



Property 

Crimes

Breaking 

& 

Entering Larceny

Crimes 

Against 

Persons

Animal 

Control 

Calls Assaults Mental Commit. Drug Arrests

Current: 15-May 1 3 9 2 40 2 5 1

Last Month: 15-Apr 3 1 3 7 35 2 2 1

Last Year: 14-May 3 4 3 6 49 1 1 2

Traffic 

Offense

Other 

Arrest

Juvenile 

Arrest

Total 

Arrest Reports

Papers 

Served

Armed 

Robbery

Calls 

Answered Building Checks

Avg. Jail 

Population

124 8 0 133 208 90 0 882 301

79 63 0 143 189 121 0 869 374 0

45 11 0 58 96 89 3 941 334 0

882

28.4

4003

9876

12335

NONE

Trainings

Date

Camden County Sheriff's Office Monthly Stats
May-15

Sheriff Tony Perry

Calls Answered:

Average:

Calls for Service 2015:

Calls for Service 2014:

Calls for Service 2013:

Page 140 of 154



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.J 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   June 15, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 

Submitted By: County Manager 
 

 

 

 

ITEM TITLE:   Set Public Hearing Date – Camden Towne Center 

Water and Sewer Betterments 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

Set Public Hearing Date for July 6
th

, 2015 

   

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

Set Public Hearing Date for July 6th, 2015 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 141 of 154



Property 

Crimes

Breaking 

& 

Entering Larceny

Crimes 

Against 

Persons

Animal 

Control 

Calls Assaults Mental Commit. Drug Arrests

Current: 15-May 1 3 9 2 40 2 5 1

Last Month: 15-Apr 3 1 3 7 35 2 2 1

Last Year: 14-May 3 4 3 6 49 1 1 2

Traffic 

Offense

Other 

Arrest

Juvenile 

Arrest

Total 

Arrest Reports

Papers 

Served

Armed 

Robbery

Calls 

Answered Building Checks

Avg. Jail 

Population

124 8 0 133 208 90 0 882 301

79 63 0 143 189 121 0 869 374 0

45 11 0 58 96 89 3 941 334 0

882

28.4

4003

9876

12335

NONE

Trainings

Date

Camden County Sheriff's Office Monthly Stats
May-15

Sheriff Tony Perry

Calls Answered:

Average:

Calls for Service 2015:

Calls for Service 2014:

Calls for Service 2013:

Page 142 of 154



From 5/1/2015 Through 5/31/2015

Account Balance ReportTammie Krauss

Register of Deeds

Camden, NC

P. O. Box 190

Camden, NC  27921

(252) 331-4851

Account 

Number Charge Total

Other Pay 

Method

Cash/Check/

ChangeAccount Description

$0.00 $514.60 01-06 State Treasurer Fund $0.00 $514.60 

$0.00 $9,951.00 01-07 Excise Stamps $0.00 $9,951.00 

$0.00 $70.97 01-09 Retirement Fund $0.00 $70.97 

$0.00 $0.00 01-10 Additional Index $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $466.25 01-11 Automation Fund $0.00 $466.25 

$0.00 $0.00 88-88 Credit On Account $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $49.85 03-01 Copies $0.00 $49.85 

$0.00 $4.43 03-02 Certified Copies $0.00 $4.43 

$0.00 $0.00 03-03 Fax $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 03-04 Laminations $0.00 $0.00 

******* Account Group COPIES Total ******* $0.00 $54.28 $0.00 $54.28 

$0.00 $26.58 04-01 Notary Oaths $0.00 $26.58 

******* Account Group MISCELLANEOUS Total ******* $0.00 $26.58 $0.00 $26.58 

$0.00 $2,726.07 01-01 Recording Fees $0.00 $2,726.07 

$0.00 $0.00 01-02 Non Standard Fees $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 01-03 Probate $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 01-04 Cultural Resources $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 01-05 Floodplain Mapping $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $147.16 01-08 Uccs $0.00 $147.16 

******* Account Group RECORDINGS Total ******* $0.00 $2,873.23 $0.00 $2,873.23 

$0.00 $265.92 02-01 County Marriages $0.00 $265.92 

$0.00 $360.00 02-02 Domestic Violence Fund $0.00 $360.00 

$0.00 $60.00 02-03 Childrens Trust Fund $0.00 $60.00 

$0.00 $505.02 02-04 Vital Certificates $0.00 $505.02 

$0.00 $0.00 02-05 Legitimations $0.00 $0.00 

******* Account Group VITALS Total ******* $0.00 $1,190.94 $0.00 $1,190.94 

Final Totals : $15,147.85 $0.00 $0.00 $15,147.85 

Page 1 of 2Prepared On :

Application Version : 3.11.32.0

Cott 

Systems Resolution3

Monday, June 1, 2015   8:40 am

Page 143 of 154



From 5/1/2015 Through 5/31/2015

Account Balance ReportTammie Krauss

Register of Deeds

Camden, NC

P. O. Box 190

Camden, NC  27921

(252) 331-4851

Account 

Number Charge Total

Other Pay 

Method

Cash/Check/

ChangeAccount Description

Counts/Totals From 5/1/2015 Through 5/31/2015

$15,147.85 

$15,147.85 

$0.00 

$14,245.15 

$0.00 

$113.10 

$1,015.80 

+

-

+

+

Subtotal :

Charge Total :

Grand Total :

Check Total :

Other Pay Total:

Change Total :

Cash Total : +

 0 

 158 

 0 

 80 

 0 

 10 

 82 

Number of Check Payments :

Number of Charge Payments :

Number of Other Payments :

Number of Change  Payments :

Number of Cash Payments :

Number of Receipts :

Number of Voids :

 0 

$0.00 

Open Item Information

Number of Payments on Account :

Total Paid on Account :

Charge Information

Page 2 of 2Prepared On :

Application Version : 3.11.32.0

Cott 

Systems Resolution3

Monday, June 1, 2015   8:40 am

Page 144 of 154



Pat McCrory
Governor

State of North Carolina

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

June 8, 2015

Anthony J. Tata
Secretary

Ms. Lisa Barry
122 Taylors Court
Camden, NC 27921

County: Camden

Subject: Addition of Road in Taylors Beach Landing
SR 1183 Taylors Court

Dear Ms. Barry,

Your name was listed as the contact person on the above petition for State
Maintenance, and we are pleased to inform you that the above road has been approved
for addition to the State Highway System. This addition was approved by the North
Carolina Board of Transportation at the Board Meeting of May 7, 2015.

Of course it will be impossible to notify all of the petitioners regarding the
addition of this road, and I would personally appreciate it if you would tell the interested
persons for me. Division of Highways field forces will begin maintaining this road just as
soon as it can be worked into their schedule. Any improvement programmed for this
road must be accomplished within the needs for existing State Maintained Roads located
in this county.

Attachments

Cc: M.K. Fearing
J.D. Jennings, PE
R.K. Sawyer, PE
Mike Renshaw, Camden County Manager
Melvin Hawkins, Camden Schools

1929 North Road Street, Elizabeth City, NC 27909

Sincerely,

Randy W. Midgett, PE
District Field Engineer

Phone: (252)331-4737; Fax: (252)331-4739

Page 145 of 154



Patrick McCrory
Governor

State of North Carolina

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Thursday, May 21, 2015

MEMORANDUM TO: Mr. J.D. Jennings, PE (acting)

Division Engineer

Division 1

FROM:

SUBJECT:

John C. Farley, Manager

Geographic Information Systems Unit

2015 District 1 Road System Changes

Anthony Tata
Secretary

The Data Conversion Group has been authorized to make the following changes to the state
road system as indicated below. We request that you make similar changes to the related maps
and files in your Division and District offices, and install appropriate road number signs if
necessary. We have updated our records accordingly. If our system changes do not conform to
the actual conditions in the field, please return this memorandum with recommendations.

PETITION County Approval Date

CAMDEN 2015 05 50767 CAMDEN 5/7/2015

Inquiries about changes should be referred to the GIS Help Desk at GISHelp@ncdot.gov.
Thank you for your assistance.

JCF

cc: BSIP

Bridge Maintenance
Division Right of Way
IMG

Pavement Management
Permit Unit

State Road Maintenance

Traffic Engineering
Traffic Surveys

MAILING ADDRESS:

NC Department Of Transportation

Geographic Information Systems

1521 Mail Service Center

Raleigh. NC 27699-1521

s
DELIVERY ADDRESS:

4101 Capital Blvd.

Raleigh. NC 27604
FAX: (919) 707-2214

Page 146 of 154



2015 ROAD SYSTEM CHANGES

PETITION COUNTY

APPROVAL ROUTE PORTION STREET LENGTH REMARKS

DATE NUMBER REASSIGNED NAME (miles) TYPE OF CHANGE (See Attached Map)

CAMDEN_2015_05_50767 CAMDEN 5/7/2015 SR1183 TAYLORS CT 0.20
SYSTEM ADDITION

VIA

PETITION

Paee2of2

Page 147 of 154



Document Number: Camden_2015_05_50767

Map Date: 05/12/15 County: Camden

Approval Date: 05/07/15

:*
&

'o9 ,0*

**.

:<9
7*s

s*
.1165

0.37

,**

<&

•<*.V*>

**:
.*n*

&

&

0

>3*
o

Add

SR1183

Taylors Ct
for 0.20 Mi

Route Number(s):
1183

*K

*tf

•<?

Legend
-,••,,„•• Addition

)( )( )( Deletion

Reassignment

SR

NC

US

Interstate

Ramp

Non-System

Obliterated s
NCDOT

270 540

**

/'*

1,080 1,620 2,160

Page 148 of 154



ALBEMARLE
COMMISSION

The Sound of Progress
Bob Woodard, Sr. ^^. C^OMMIbblON Cathy Davison, ICMA-CM
Board Chair tl^ r« __1^/d Executive Director

June 11, 2015

Mr. Michael Renshaw, County Manager
Camden County, North Carolina
P.O. Box 190

Camden, North Carolina 27921

Re: Letter of Support for the Economic Development Administration Infrastructure Grant
Courthouse Wastewater Treatment Plant

Dear Mr. Renshaw,

It is with pride that the Albemarle Commission supports Camden County's commercial
development with the Courthouse Wastewater Treatment Plant project. The development of
the Courthouse Wastewater Treatment Plant will provide sewer service to support new
commercial development within Camden County which will reduce the need for its residents to
travel out of the County for basic services, as well as to provide a new employment basis for
County residents.

Further, the project is supported by the Regional Comprehensive Economic Development
Strategy (CEDS). Two of the goals within the CEDS are (1) to establish and maintain a robust
regional infrastructure and (2) to revitalize and create vibrant communities; with the
development of the Courthouse Wastewater Treatment Plant that will support the new
commercial development in Camden County these two goals are met.

As always, should you need any economic development assistance, please do not hesitate to
contact the Albemarle Commission as we are the regional office for economic development as
supported by the Economic Development Administration.

Very truly yours,

^kA*?
Cathy Davison, ICMA-CM

Executive Director

512 South Church Street P.O. Box 646 Hertford, NC 27944 Phone: 252-426-5753 Fax: 252-426-8482 www.albemarlecommission.org

Proudly serving Northeastern NCCounties and Municipalities: Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell,
Washington, Columbia, Creswell, Duck,Edenton, Elizabeth City,Gatesville, Hertford, Kill Devil Hills, Kitty Hawk, Manteo, Nags Head, Plymouth,
Roper, Southern Shores, and Winfall

Page 149 of 154



Mike Renshaw

From: Kevin Leonard <kevin.leonard@ncacc.org>
Sent: Wednesday, June 10,2015 6:06 PM
To: Commissioners
Cc: County Managers; NCACC-Legislative; Amy Bason; Elizabeth Floyd; Johanna Reese; Kevin

Leonard; Michael Kelly; Patrice C. Roesler
Subject: Sales Tax Distribution Proposal Update

Dear County Commissioners,

I hope this message finds you well.

I am writing to update you on developments about the NC Senate's plans to redistribute sales
tax across our North Carolina Counties.

Earlier today, Senator Harry Brown (Jones, Onslow) shared with us the Senate's revised
proposal to redistribute sales tax.

I am happy to report that your voices were heard - during our conversation with Senator
Brown, he confirmed that the proposal no longer converts the county sales tax to a statewide
sales tax. It keeps the tax as county-levied, thereby ensuring counties maintain long-term local
control and fiscal security. Congratulations on positively and significantly impacting this
legislation. Your role in this discussion cannot be underestimated. As you have heard time and
again, you are our best advocates and today's development is an example of how crucial it is
that our legislators hear from you.

In brief, the new proposal has complex moving parts about sales tax reform (which would
expand the base and create new revenues), grants counties some new county levied taxing
authority by referendum, and reconfigures the sales tax distribution based on an 80% per capita
and 20% point of sale delivery model. This redistribution would be phased in over five
years. The bill also includes economic development investments as well as coiporate and
personal income tax reductions.

Obviously, we are still digesting the revised proposal and will send additional analysis
tomorrow. (Click here to access the revised bill language and supporting documents released
today.) In the meantime, we wanted to make you aware of this development and please feel
free to share any observations, questions and/or concerns.

Thank you.

Kevin

Page 150 of 154



-°*~<-°:

Kevin G. Leonard

Executive Director

N.C. Association of County Commissioners
Phone (919) 715-4369 | Fax (919) 733-1065
www.ncacc.org

£

Page 151 of 154



FY 2016-17

Senate Proposal to Modify Local Option Sales Tax Distribution Formula:

Camden County

FY 2013-14

General Fund

(GF) Revenue

FY 2013-14

Sales Tax Distribution

$ As % of GF

FY 2014-15

Projected

FY 2015-16

Projected

Current Law Senate Plan

Camden Co. 16,804,395 1,377,953 8% 1,432,296 1,483,073 1,513,273
Elizabeth City * 8,706 9,007 9,325 9,515

Jurisdiction spans multiple counties.

Current Law

(All Articles)

SENATE PROPOSAL: 40% Per Capita; 60% Point of Collection Change From Current Law

Art. 39,40,42 Other Levied Subtotal

2C Articles

Potential Addt'l Total Potential

Under Sen. Plan Revenue

to

Total Potential Revenue

Camden Co. 1,529,532 1,809,752 1,809,752 273,507 2,083,259 553,726 36%
Elizabeth City * 9,659 10,952 10,952 10,952 1,293 13%

FY 2017-18

Current Law

(All Articles)

SENATE PROPOSAL: 55% Per Capita; 45% Point of Collection Change From Current Law

Art. 39,40,42 Other Levied Subtotal

2C Articles

Potential Addt'l Total Potential

Under Sen. Plan Revenue

to

Total Potential Revenue

Camden Co. 1,583,086 2,115,899 2,115,899 283,079 2,398,978 815,892 52%
Elizabeth City * 9,997 12,405 12,405 12,405 2,408 24%

FY 2018-19

Current Law

(AllArticles)

SENATE PROPOSAL:70% Per Capita;

Potential Addt'l Total Potential

Under Sen. Plan Revenue

Change From Current Law

to

Total Potential Revenue
Camden Co. 1,638,664 2,443,905 - 2,443,905

13,956 13,956
292,987 2,736,892 1,098,227 67%

Elizabeth City * 10,348 13,956 3,608 35%

FY 2019-20

Current Law

(All Articles)

SENATE PROPOSAL: 80% Per Capita; 20% Point of Collection Change From Current Law
Art. 39,40,42 Other Levied Subtotal

2C Articles

Potential Addt'l Total Potential

Under Sen. Plan Revenue

to

Total Potential Revenue

Camden Co. 1,696,214 2,710,699 2,710,699 303,242 3,013,941 1,317,727 78%
4,536 42%Elizabeth City * 10,711 15,247 15,247 15,247

Fiscal Research Division
27 June 10, 2015

Page 152 of 154



Angela

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:

Wooten

NCACC <listserv@civicplus.com>

Thursday, June 11, 2015 5:03 PM
awooten@camdencountync.gov
NCACC Legislative Alert - Senate sales tax proposal, questions remain

NCACC Legislative Alert
2015 Legislative Session

100 Counties i

Senate Unveils Revised HB 117 Including Updated Sales Tax Distribution Plan,
Questions Remain

The Senate on Wednesday unveiled comprehensive legislation that would make wide-
ranging changes to the state's economic development incentives model, restructure how
local sales taxes are distributed to counties, expands the sales tax base, reduces the
amount of sales tax refunds that non-profits can receive, and provides additional sales tax
authority to counties. Questions remain surrounding the issue of how the Medicaid hold
harmless is treated. The NCACC is working to get more definitive answers on what could
be expected, and will keep you informed on that front. You can access a detailed analysis
of the legislation prepared by the NCACC by clicking here. Below are some highlights.

It is clear that your voices were heard as the proposal no longer converts the county sales
tax to a statewide sales tax. It keeps the tax as county-levied, thereby ensuring counties
maintain long-term local control and fiscal security. Congratulations to all who contributed
to positively and significantly impacting this legislation.

H117 (NC Competes Act - Senate Commerce Committee PCS) Highlights

• Economic Development: Makes several modifications to the JDIG program,
including extending the sunset to Jan. 1, 2018, creating a new Major Market
Community for Wake, Mecklenburg and Durham counties and requires local
government participation in Tier 3.

• Sales tax base : The bill expands the sales tax base to include more services.
These changes are estimated to increase local sales tax revenues by $49.7 million
in 2015-16, rising to $162.4 million by 2019-20.

• Sales tax refunds : The bill phases down the sales tax refund cap for non-profits
from $667 million worth of purchases in 2015-16 to $15 million in 2020. This would
generate additional sales tax revenues for the state and local governments.

• Sales tax distribution : The bill would shift the distribution of local sales taxes

(Articles 39, 40 and 42) from 25% per capita/75% point of delivery to 80% per
capita/20% point of delivery by Oct. 1, 2019 in a five-year phase down.

Page 153 of 154



• Local Sales Tax Options : The bill grants to counties the authority to levy two
quarter-cent sales taxes that can be used for education, transportation or any
general public use. A referendum is required for either sales tax, and a county
may only levy one quarter-cent sales tax at a time. The local sales tax rate is
capped at 2.5%, except for Durham and Orange counties, which are already at
2.75%. They are capped at 2.75%. For counties that have already levied the
Article 46 quarter-cent sales tax, they may only levy an additional quarter-cent
sales tax.

For More Information

Click here to to view the revised bill language and supporting documents released
yesterday.

f Share on Facebook ^Share on Twitter

Copyright ©2015 NCACC. All Rights Reserved.

215 N. Dawson St.. Raleigh, NC 27603

If you no longer wish to receive emails from us, you may Unsubscribe.

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

'Share via Email

fl?CIVICSEND
Powered by

Page 154 of 154


	Presentations
	Economic Improvement Council
	2015 Tax Rate Review
	Water/Sewer Staffing 

	OLD BUSINESS
	Camden Youth Sports Programming

	PUBLIC HEARING
	Capital ImprovementFive Year Plan

	NEW BUSINESS
	Monthly Tax Report
	Budget Ordinance No. 2015-06-02
	Board Salaries
	Fee Schedule
	Set the 2015 Tax Rate

	CONSENT AGENDA
	Draft Meeting Minutes
	Budget Amendment
	Tax Dept.Monthly Collection Report
	Tax Authorization to Collect
	Elder Abuse Awareness Month
	Personnel Policy Revision
	ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENT
	Set Public Hearing
	GovDeals – Bid Results
	Set Public Hearing Date

	INFORMATION
	Sheriff’s Monthly Report - May
	Register of Deeds Monthly Report - May
	Taylors Beach Landing Road Addition  
	Albemarle Commission - Letter of Support for EDA Grant
	Sales Tax Distribution 
	Senate Unveils Revised HB 117 Including Updated Sales Tax Distribution Plan, Questions Remain




